Minutes
04.28.2022

Regular Commission
Meeting Minutes




Regular Commission Meeting Minutes
Thursday, April 28™ 2022
5:00 p.m.
Cibola County Commission Chambers

Elected Officials Present Staff

Daniel Torrez, Chairman Kate Fletcher, County Manager
Martha Garcia, 1% Vice Chairman Paul Ludi, Finance Director
Christine Lowery, 2" Vice Chairman Natalie Grine, Chief Deputy Clerk
Robert Windhorst, Commissioner Teri Harwood, Recording / Filing

Ralph Lucero, Commissioner

. Call to Order
Commissioner Torrez called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm.

. Roll Call
Chairman Torrez does roll call, all Commissioners are present, with Commissioner Garcia arriving
at 5:04.

. Pledge of Allegiance
Led by Commissioner Lucero, recited by all.

. Prayer
Led by Commissioner Lowery.

. Approval of Agenda
Motion to approve agenda by Commissioner Lowery

second made by Commissioner Windhorst 5-0 affirmative.

. Public Comment

Kathleen Gibson, President from Fence Lake Association stated that NMDOT notifies her regarding losing Fence
Lake patrol, the population is increasing, and amount of travel is also increasing. She asked to please try to keep
the patrolling in place.

Terry Jasper asked the Commissioners if they would write a letter in support of keeping Patrol open.

Westin Fletcher stated that if the Community losses it is patrolling it could possibly diminish property values in the
area. Mr. Fletcher also mentioned it would be hard for emergency vehicles to get through to the area.

. Minutes
a. Minutes from March 24, 2022, Regular Commission Meeting
b. Minutes from April 14", 2022, Special Commission Meeting
Motion to approve Minutes made by Commissioner Windhorst
second made by Commissioner Lucero. 5-0 affirmative.

Page 1 of 4



8. Reports
a. Budget and Finance Report- Kate Fletcher-County Manager & Paul Ludi-Finance Director

(Reports on File)

9. Public Hearing
a. Ordinance 2022-001 Authorizing the Execution and delivery of a Taxable Loan Agreement and

Intercept Agreement by and Between the County and New Mexico Finance Authority (NMFA)
for a Government Center HVAC. No Comments currently.

10. New Business — Action May Be Taken
a. Consideration of Ordinance 2022-001 Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of a
Taxable Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement by and Between the County and
New Mexico Finance Authority (NMFA) for a Government Center HVAC.
Motion to approve item A. motioned by Commissioner Lucero
second made by Commissioner Windhorst. 5-0 affirmative.

b. Consideration of Resolution 2022-23 Budget Adjustment Number 6
Motion to approve item B. motioned by Commissioner Garcia,
second made by Commissioner Windhorst. 5-0 affirmative.

c. Consideration of Resolution 2022-24 37 Quarter Report
Motion to Approve item C made by Commissioner Windhorst,
second by Commissioner Garcia 5-0 affirmative.

d. Consideration of Memorandum of Understanding Between Office of the Secretary of State
and Cibola County to Pay for the Counties Cost Incurred for the 2022 Primary Election

Motion to approve item D made by Commissioner Windhorst,

second by Commissioner Lucero 5-0 affirmative.

e. Direction to Staff to Publish the Title and General Summary of Ordinance 2022-002
County Maintained Road Ordinance

Motion to approve item E. motioned by Commissioner Windhorst,

second made by Commissioner Lowery. 5-0 affirmative.

f. Direction to Staff to Publish the Title and General Summary of Ordinance 2022-003

Restricting Open and Controlled Burns in the Unincorporated Areas of Cibola County
Motion to approve item F made by Commissioner Garcia, ’
second by Commissioner Lowery. 5-0 affirmative.

g. Consideration of a Proclamation Designating the Month of May as Motorcycle Awareness
Month '

Motion to approve item G made by Commissioner Windhorst,

second by Commissioner Lucero 5-0 affirmative.

h. Consideration of Resolution 2022-25 Supporting the Eligibility and Intent of Cibola County
to Submit an Application to NMDOT for the New Mexico Transportation Project Fund
(TPF) for Moquino Road (CR-5) Bridge and Road Improvement Project

Motion to approve item H. made by Commissioner Lowery,

second by Commissioner Windhorst 5-0 affirmative.

'Page 2 of4



i. Consideration of Resolution 2022-26 In Support of the Passage of the Radiation Exposure
Compensation Act (RECA) Amendments 2021 (H.R.5338, S2798)

Motion to approve item I. MADE BY Commissioner Windhorst,

second by Commissioner Garcia 5-0 affirmative.

J. Consideration of Requisitions Over $20,000

a. Artesia Fire Equipment / Fire Equipment / Laguna Fire Dept.- $66,407
Motion to approve item J. made by Commissioner Lucero,
second by Commissioner Lowery 5-0 affirmative.

k. Consideration to Authorize the Advisory Investment Committee (AIC) to move Upcoming
TBK CD’s that will Mature in May 2022.

Motion to approve item K. was made by Commissioner Garcia,
second by Commissioner Lowery 5-0 affirmative.

11. Executive Session

Motion and roll call vote to go into executive session and that, pursuant to New Mexico State Statute
Section 10-15-1. only the following matters will be discussed in closed session:
Commissioner Lucero made a motion to go into executive session at 6:17 p.m. second by Commissioner
Windhorst.
Pursuant to Section 10-15-1 (H) (8) the following matters may be discussed in closed session:

a. Pending or threatened litigation 10-15-1 (H) (7)

b. Real Property 10-15-1 (H) (2)
1. Vista Del Monte Subdivision

¢. Personnel 10-15-1 (H) (2)

d. Other specific limited topics that are allowed or authorized under the stated statute.

Motion and Roll Call Vote to Return to Regular Session

Motion and Roll Call Vote that Matters Discussed in Closed Session Were Limited to Those Specified In
Motion For Closed, and That No Final Action Was Taken, As Per New Mexico Statues Section §10-15-1
Motion to return to Regular Session at 6:43 p.m. made by Commissioner Lucero,

second by Commissioner Lowery 5-0 affirmative.

12. New Business-Action May Be Taken
a. Direction to Staff Regarding Vista Del Monte Subdivision

Motion Made by Commissioner Garcia to have Direction to Staff to have Vista Del Monte Subdivision
Replated and Appraised second by Commissioner Lowery 5-0 affirmative.

13. Announcements
The next Regular Commission Meeting will be on May 26™, 2022, at 5;00 p.m.

14. Adjournment

Motion to adjourn made by Commissioner Torrez, second by Commissioner Lucero 5-0
6:51 p.m.

Page 3 of 4



PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED this 26" of May, 2022

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Daniel Torrez, Chairman

Martha Garcia, 1° Vice Chairman

Christine Lowery, 2" Vice Chairman

Ralph Lucero, Commissioner

Robert Windhorst, Commissioner

ATTEST:

Date:

Michelle E. Dominguez, Cibola County Clerk

SEAL

Page 4 of 4



Budget and

Finance Report

As of April 30, 2022

No Backup Documentation At This Time




Treasurer’s

Report

Treasurer Kathy Gonzales & Deputy Johnny
Pino

No Backup Documentation




Reports Not

Presented

Road Dept.




Cibola County Road Dept.

505-285-2570 Phone 505-285 3656 Fax

700 E. Roosevelt Suite 50
Grants NM 87020

Monday , May 3, 2022

To: Kate Fletcher - County Manager
Fr: Edward Salazar - Road Superintendent
Re: Monthly Report: 03/31/22 - 04/29/22 (April)

Road

Cc42
C484
C50
49
C624
47
C44
CI19B
Cc29

C52
Cci7
c23
C57
c42
C35

Regular Maintenance

Blade & Shape

Description

Back Country By Way
Timberlake Rd.
Zuni Canyon Rd.
Zuni Canyon Rd. (Grants)
Paxton Springs Rd.
Mesa Ridge Rd.
Porter Ranch Rd.
La Mosca Tank Rd.
Plano Colorado
Total Miles

Special Projects

El Gallo Rd. - Fix fence.

Mt. Taylor Addition - Put up signs.

Ralph Card Rd. - Remove speed bumps, remove blow sand, sweep road.
W. Circle Dr. - Remove speed bumps and replace.

Back Country By Way - Put up signs, fix potholes, haul material to fill in low spots.
E. Homestead Rd. - Put up signs.

Miles

18.626
16.400
4.366
13.427
3.578
7.148
1.330
5.163
2.482
72.520



C41 Pie Town Rd. - Build detour road, install cattleguard, cleanip.

Cl74 Walter Rd. - Put up sign.

C524 Tomas Rd. - Put up signs.

Cl4 San Fidel Village - Put up signs.

C624 Paxton Springs Rd. - Clean up spilled oil from blade breakdown.
C48 Mallery Rd. - Install cattleguard.

Cl5 Rinconada Rd. - Install cattleguard.

Put up signs for Rural Addressing.

Forest Roads

FR 453 La Mosca Peak - 4/21/22.
FR 193 Horace Mesa - 4/21/22, 4/25/22, 4/26/22, 4/27/22, 4/28/22.



Cibola County Road Dept.

700 E. Roosevelt Suite 50
Grants NM 87020

505-285-2570 Phone  Fax 505-287-3656
- April 2022
Total Paris & Hours Mechanic Total on Repair
Department | Unit Number oir Worked Rate Order

Road 141 5 55.50 2 $ 18.40 92.30
Road 154 ] 37.06 7 $ 18.40 55.46
Road 419 5 369.76 6 & 18.40 480.16
Road 420 5 325.02 14 g 18.40 582.62

TOTAL 1,210.54




Cibola County Road Dept.

515 W. High Street

Grants NM 87020
505-285-2570 Phone

505-287-3656 Fax

FUEL kEPORTm CIBOLA COUNTY ROAD DEPARTMENT

April 2022
UNLEADED
UNIT# | VENHICLE# | COST/MILE MPG MILES TOTAL GAL. | TOTAL COST
127 | G18473 | #VALUEl | #VALUE! NU 0000 |$ :
128 | G18464 | #VALUE! | HVALUE! NU 0000 | ¢ ;
130 | New Truck 0.52 9.38 534 56900 | ¢ 279.30
131 | G-20800 | #VALUE! | #VALUEI NU 0000 |¢ )
133 | G-2369 0.26 15.87 714 45000 |8 187.09
138 | G-95862 0.29 17.23 877 50900 |$ 250.49
139 | G57384 | #VALUE! | #VALUE! MU 0000 |$ :
140 | G57619 | #VALUE! | #VALUE! NU 0000 | :
141 | G-57618 0.19 21.71 280 12900 |$ 53.51
146 146 #VALUE! | #VALUE! NU 0000 |$ :
147 | G-66164 0.29 14.29 220 15400 | $ 64.00
148 | G-66165 0.14 29,85 388 13.000 | $ 54.03
150 | G-70482 0.47 8.88 142 16000 | $ 66.39
151 | G78718 0.28 15.28 2,325 152200 | $ 645.24
152 | G-64239 0.21 19.83 357 18.000 |$ 75.00
153 | G-86952 0.14 30.70 1,363 4400 |8 185.01
154 | G-86953 0.20 21.15 550 26000 |§ 108.63
155 | G-86954 | H#VALUE! | #VALUE! NU 0000 |$ :
156 | commmsor | HVALUE! | #VALUE! N 0000 |$ :
157 | G-91750 0.24 16.98 1,727 101.700 | #17.00
TOTAL GAS 552.400 | § 2,385.69




DIESEL FUEL

UNIT # | VEHICLE # | COST/MILE MPG MILES TOTAL GAL. | TOTAL COST
137 G-50237 0.21 23.41 515 22.000 $ 110.00
209 G-18476 #VALUE! #VALUE! NU 0.000 $ -
212 G-30550 #VALUE! #VALUE! NU 0.000 $ -
213 G-30549 #VALUE! #VALUE! NU 0.000 3
214 G-38441 #VALUE! #VALUE! NU 0.000 |$ -
215 G-67372 #VALUE! #VALUE! NU 0.000 $
216 G-67371 #VALUE! #VALUE! NU 0.000 $ -
217 G-70782 0.79 6.57 443 67.400 $ 350.42
218 Distributor #VALUE! #VALUE! NU 0.000 ) -
219 Water Truck 30.61 0.17 10 60.000 $ 306.09
220 | New Transport | #VALUE! #VALUE! NU 0.000 $ -
221 | New Dump Truck 1.08 4.63 1,770 382.300 $ 1,930.22
222 | New Dump Truck 0.81 6.41 423 66.000 $ 343,35
305 305 #VALUE! #VALUE! NU 0.000 $ -
306 306 #VALUE! #VALUE! NU 0.000 $ -
307 307 #VALUE! #VALUE! NU 0.000 3 -
308 308 10.56 0.48 24 49.800 $ 253.49
309 309 19.01 0.26 1 3.800 $ 19.01
310 310 #VALUE! #VALUE! N/U 0.000 $ -
311 311 15.19 0.34 4 11.900 $ 60.77
312 312 #VALUE! #VALUE! NU 0.000 $ -
313 313 #VALUE! #VALUE! NU 0.000 $
314 314 #VALUE! #VALUE! NU 0.000 $ -
416 416 17.97 0.27 30 110.000 $ 539.03
417 417 #VALUE! #VALUE! NU 0.000 $ -
418 418 12.98 0.39 42 108.800 3 544.96
419 419 17.09 0.30 94 317.500 $ 1,606.37
420 420 19.09 0.27 83 313.000 $ 1,584.70
501 501 #VALUE! #VALUE! NU 0.000 ) -
525 525 #VALUE! #VALUE! NU 0.000 3 -

Extra Fuel DEF #VALUE! #VALUE! NU 0.000 $ -

Extra Fuel | 7" "L 0,04 17.93 893 49800 |8 211.57

TOTAL DIESEL 1562.300 | $ 7,859.98

*N/U = NOT USED




Recognition of
Candy Kitchen

Fire Dept.

Chief Michael Sweet and Shirley Sweet

No Backup Documentation




Recreational

Economies

Les Gaines




020Z 19qUuISAON
OJIXd\] M3 ‘sjue.ln)

SAILINNWWOD TTVvdNY

A0/

uejd uondy
Aunwiwion







eeeeee ST
cw*:

1 Sggaﬁmiv b EecE@ uda % jeu Wwa“

[ tosmmhumk _w_}_“u«
J_EQP—cum mmm m:: muoddo w»*wu

ey Q—Lﬁ Cu\mﬁw&ﬂlr_ :» i

a_:sEES =~SU0I1210qe]10)
S2IN5E31) J00PIN0 UIPPIYIIEILS Y] 10§ j2powe Aunuoddo fuxﬁw

AL j Bl ajes uoRean,
Soopu=lle wd Q — m m m u ::&.
Haesl @ 1B1) SPIAID 1RIUSUIILOI

€9 ay1 3UlWOod|aM =

do 3N}

>:_mm0u. snoixue

10j0J9 e Yljeay=....Salul} unjsr :lcaam._oﬁxm

4_.E 9ADE i

91ds3 uoser Joiell|ioe)
Pes| YiMm 0c0c¢

‘T JoQWISAON 4O
dulusAs syl uo uedaq
doysy4om [enuiA 8yl

_.b S¥F S by B
_Em{w Fvnwun..
L _:m.m_

Fﬂ_gv A ﬂﬂm

44
e

£l s



up)d uondy ayj jo g abod

-.uoijeuipiood jed0j ¢>O._G_E_ B 74

:iomod buifeys 1oy ainyonijsesjul
pue ‘saijiuswe ‘suoijdeljle aseau| °§

:A31A1>9uu0d anoaduwi| 2

:UOI}eUI}SIP UOI}LedII
loopino ue se A3iuapl ino adeys |

‘ue|d uoiyoe Jisy; Joj sanold YNo4
PaI11USPI 993HWWOD bulIadls ay |

swWdoRAS( JIWOU02] SAIHUNWWOCD)
ejoqn) - ybnoiogie, zaney) uas|iz
SJUBIUISACD

JO [IPUNOD ODIX3N MBN 1SOMYLION
TI01981i(] 2AIIND3X] - SWelj[IM uea3

sjuein

jo A3 ‘SHIOM Dljgnd - ewiIysa ] dJJe
sjueis jo

A opaig bunadyie - jeqhoy suyd
SEETIVIITY]

Sjueln) 101231I(] - ZBUe auuyor
0DIX3\| M3 Jo uawasioH Anuno)
soeg i Auno) ejog) - uosie] euuy
sjuels jo

A ‘spaloid [epads ‘ojjiueser pjeuoq
SJUBLILIBACD)

JO |PUNOD ODIXAA MBN }SIMUHION
‘Jjauueld |eucibay - amoH uopueig
aAljelIoqe||oD)

UIBlUNOA] IUNZ 10jAe] "} - Sauleq s3]
1seisnyjug 1oopinQ/iaauibug

[e207 - umoig [PeydIN

wea)] adedspue Jojhe] IN

1@ 3dUBl||Y [IB1] B]og) - umoag elpud)
sjuein

jo Ayn ‘1ebeuepy A1 — ojjiwieser eine

F3LLININOD ONIY3ILS



‘sdnaib

DUE Si2npIAipUl
suios Aq uoyesissy
spnyan Aemubiy-jjo
0} uonIsoddo

- umouyun, si Sjugig
isegiunyoddo

Buipu jeab

4oNS DBy 58T SJUBI9
8y jey; esprou

£eYy |, ‘SeMm JuSWILoD
SUD JaQWny 847 ‘8L,
DUE ;10T Ui Sjusi9
uj Jusas alziopow
nySS8ans Aign

B £a00y s LayA

(pansaiad) wioy jind
o3 uonemndod jjewis

| ub)d uondy ayj jo 6 abod

WINSIY dc-02 pinoys

diysuspes; fousbe
[eiepayBes/ea0)

ul fousisisuos
‘Busuuerd ‘Buspund

sueyd uawdojassp
uj e2SY) spnoul

uoniuboaes
aureu MoJ

slauleg / sabuajjeyo

‘Bunesispy

Joj Bunebpnq pue
buijaxiepy buipsebas
suoneziuebio
usamiaq
UOIIBIIUNWILIOD
sisieg

ejna;
100 peuuLeepuf)

$48N
WG SaN usamieq
UOREIOGE(|0D JO %2287

CBaJB [BUJSIXE
o) Bupsyseus jo #2587

‘auowfue fousbe
BINLL JOU ST I8jUS2
Jopsia Saushe mingy

usyzebo; BupLiom
PUB pBAJOAUI Wiell
186 0} s1 ebusjjeys
Yesjunjos pue spjoid
uou Buons ‘poob

40O 10] E BABY 3

ejelseul
Buoje ssedoe fsB3

et

pue Buuds ur siexiy
ybBnauyy jo ssquunu
Jus)sisu0o el
9PIAIQ |eJUBUUOD

YOS Joifes

‘SOYS pUB SiBS
O} §S8900F pue Op-f
4o ssadoe jeaib snid
S8R AS/IOI0H/
1810H jo Ajddns sjdusy

spunoub 0spoy

LUMO) JO SOURIUS
jsem 0] suisdid
1806iq Buanponuy
QUSRI
MAYIGIEM UMOJIMOD
e opai o ueid iesh
Aunosumo; Ui s)essy
Auew iaprey Buiaup
St dysiopes] (5207

‘SjueID

o] jusaelpe Jo ybnoay;
ssed yjoq a0y
BPING JESID 3Y]

pue spnoy Aioacoasig
Agunooyoeg

0omXopy MON YL

sadel

YOS JoiAeL
BWICdyY 8P INoL
pend Joiker

(uonepossy

08p0y SIUBIS) dnoib
j28.B B SI BOUB)B
SpUnNoIc) 08p0Y

Apunwwod
peyisisng

j8jdosd sjevormssed
Jo dnouB Buaiis
‘BauBYJY j1Ri) Bj0gID

Ayuroin ayp up
spucj oygnd jo s307

syueio 03 Ajwnxoid
Uy 38558 |Rinjey
pue 28 100pjN0
jeineds jo sj07

[[oM BUunjIop) / S19SSY

"UOIBBI0S1 DUNJUBAPE pUB J00PIN0 JO) Uoijeunsep adeoss
ue awoveq o] spoya Hunexiew pue Buipuelg Busixe uo ping “aAl| pue isia o1 eoeyd 1eall pue uoLBUNSepP UOHBBI0E) JOOPINO
ue se sjuess) Jo uonowo:d pue Sunexiew ‘Guipuelq aacidul] “uoljeUlSep Uolealdal 100PIN0 Ue Se Ajuept iIno adeys | [R09)




ub)d uondy ayj jo gL abod

T oyDT Ja3pmanyg 1p odxa spiodsiaipm b 1o ‘Aompaads 1pudpd wimub.n ayl 1p 0dxa
spiodsiojow b “b°a ‘paip ay] Ul 3JGDJIDAD SAIPIALID UONIDAIIAI J00pINo Judialip 1ybiybiy
10y1 A3uno) ay3 ynoybnouy) sodxa »nj1ads-A31A132p Jo 531485 D 9)1D3ID — G'| UONIY =
‘suonpziupbio pjoiduou pup siaquidw Apunwiwiod sasn by} ubipdwipd
buipup.iq Apunwiwiod b Juawajdwi 03 JapJo Ul AJuno) bjoglD Ul Sa11bI0] 1D J0) U0IIDAIIA
100pINo 3133iDW pup pup.iq AJ1ua}sisuod 03 S3J0}Ja alpuIpJ00I 0] dNUNUOD — 7°| UONIY =
'S123Ua2 UOIILWLIOJUI puUD J031S1A buipn)oul
‘sjurod $saxdp Joopino Jo) abbubis ypuoirbau ‘aA1suayadwiod J)pisul pup a3pal) — £ U0NIY =
'suondo
buibpoj pup ‘spunoibdwipd ‘syipd ‘(s)pJ) 3y} 1nogp uobwLIojUI aAaIdiaiul buipn)oul)
S)1D.J} S,0a4D 3y} SMoys by} apinb paspq-dpw aunuo pup 4adod v 3)pa.) — Z°| UONIY =

"UOI}RUI}SIP UOIeaIdAI JoopINno ue se A}juapl Jno adeys — | |eoo
NV1d NOILDV ALINNINOD



NOLLY3¥O3Y |

weig wondy
Lounuwiwed

mk_mv_o:ov_ﬁm. ,
u1 [ind 01 |n4d|ay g PJNOM 2J2WWOD JO JaqWey) sluelo 40303Ji[ dAIINIAXT ‘YSpN) epualg
w99 Wesl,
JO sp0y40 Suipuesq snoinaad sy ajpunj-as djay 01 ‘syuesn Jo AlD 403da.1q Sunade ‘[eqhoy suyd sa9joy peal

C'T Uoy 89S
(220 1eIs ‘TZ0T 40 pud) syjuow HT-ZT UlyHm s1onpoud eipaw ul 3nsal pjnoys
Aeme 1y811 9jdoad 03 yje3 03 sdnou3d yum 3uilesw uels
(Tzoz Ateniga4) syuow g :Alojuaau| aweljawi]
sjuesn
u1 sSuiyy souaiiadxa oym ajdoad wouy 13y Sem Jeyl Mauy JA3U |, Jeay Ja8uo] ou NoA uaym
‘dew 8yl UO S| puB UMOUY| SI SJUBJID UBYM :WJ31-3U0T
S1UelJD) J0J pueiq pue uedo|s e punoJe SNSUaSU0I :WJ3-110ys $S922NS JO SAUNSEIN

‘SUOIIRUIISIP

uol1eaJd9J AgJeau wouj 10 puels Syuelo) ayew eyl salliAlde Jo sduiyl ‘saoe|d 994yl JO OM)

ay1 uo ul awoy 01 paziiiiold aq pjnod AJ0JUSAUL 83U} Ul SWY Y] "BAJE Y] PUB SIUBID SD1LIIUBIBIP
1eyM pue |e12ads sI 1eym ssnasip 03 sSujlaaw Jo salas e ySnoldyy ‘s}asse s eale ay3l AJojuaaul 01 S| iSyyouaq oy Juepodui
uoinoe siy3 Suizijeal 03 dais 3sdij Y| “pazidljgnd-|jam Jou dJe eale dY} Ul S}13SSe UoI11ealdal 8yl Jo 10| v s1 31 AYM St SIY3 38y

‘PlAOM 33 03 AHuapI Jno 3jediunwiwod Ajaea)d o3 sjasse
uoI}eaJd3J JOOPINO Ino Jo Sunayiew pajasiel pue [njSuluesw aseasdu] — T°T UoiYy




1"V SNOILOV TVNOILIAAV:V XION3IddV

saunapinb ubisap “ba ‘spuawniop Aanjod ojul yiop “buiwwpiboid pup ubisap =

ybno.ay) JUaWU0IAUS JING 3y} 03U JaA0 A1ipd buipupiq pupb uonowo.id Jpy) aiNsuq =

spupJ9) w1 spafoud adubuauIDW 104} J833UNJOA pub buiuipiy saidopys 11D4) apIAld

1D3UBUNIUOD) JSOY ‘3)dwiDXa 104 IDIL dPINIC JDIUBUIIUOD BY) “B73 'S)asSD JDUOIIDAIIBI |DIO) PIDMA)S O} SIUSPISAJ SIUDID) JOJ Sa131unioddo aspaidul =
J1DJ3 3y} 03 SIOJISIA SIUDJD) pUD SIUBPISaJ SAINPOJIUI puD JIDI] PIAIG 1DIUBUIIUOD) dY} $3)DIG3a]Jad IDY] JUBAS ANUNUWILWIOD |DNUUD UD JSOH =

buiuup)d Anunwiwiod Aomaipb 3nogp UID3) UDD dM OS SADIAISS dIUDISISSD 3JIAISS YIDd |DUOIIDN BJIAU[ =

Sa1IUBWID U01ID3JI3] J00PINO ]DI0] Y] aSDIMOYS UDI A3y} 0S saakojdwia pub siUMO SSau1sNq DI0] J0J SINO) UOIDZDIIWD) YSNqDIsT =

anoj buiydpdyopg sujunop 1Nz b a1 sasualadxa 4asn-11pJ3 aboyopd pup a)pal) =

s1ybnybiy jpuoibai 03 paiojiby SpUSAS UOIIDII3] J0OPINO

Mau Younp7 ‘uojyapipond 40)Ab| Un 3Y31 SO YoNs ‘spuana Joopino buiisixa Joj wispisnypua poaids pup 3ioddns 03 Apunwiwiod ayl 10) SJUSAS UD]d =
10/Ja bunayipw pub buipupiq spupJD ayl Jo Juauodwiod 21J133ds D SO U01)D3I3] PaZIJ0JoW PPy =

3115GaM 32JaUWIWI0Y) JO JaquIDYD SIUDID) 3y} uo A10ba3pd 3)pipdas b SD UOND3IIS] JOOPINO JYIDW pUD PUDIG-3Y

32 ‘buipnb-bupy ‘buiydipmp.q ‘buipls yopgasioy ‘bunyy ‘bunys ‘buiyiq joApib/uipjunow ‘spaip

1sa40f buipuno.ins ay} “ba ‘uonadwiod 4no wo.f SspuLID ID1IUIBYJIP 40/puUDb YSINbuNSIp DY} Sa1IuN3Joddo 40 S3aSSD 23.4Y) 10 OM) ay) Auap] =
pipbmao) ysnd pub abpIubAPD JO SDaID aUIWIBIdP ‘IDAL D S] SUDID) J| "abbssaw

ay1 pupdxa Yaulipd p S} SJUDID J| Anunwiwod ainjuaApp 10opino ay} bundpiyo Ul dnjpo Jo 4o3adwiod 4o Jaulipd D S) SUDID J1 dUIWIRIS(T =
S]UaAd ]D20) JaxipwW djay pup Ul a3pdidngupd 0} $a12]yip Jpuol1bal pup pI0] YIM JO3UUOD =

S42)Ud2 J0JISIA Juawabpupyy pup] Jo nbaing pup

ADIAIBS YIDd |DUOIIDN 8Y] ID pajnglisip 8q 01 S)D1I3IDW O3U] S3131A13OD UO1IDaJdald Joopino buipipbal uonibwiiojul 1puonIppb 23034 10 a3pibajul =
wis1uNoJ -023 azisbydwa swpaboid pipaw bunayiow Ipy) 2inNsuj =

"UOMNDYI23J 2IMUSAPD puD J0OPINO 10 UOIIDUNSIP 3GDISS UD dW013q 03 S3J0jJo Sunasupw pup 3uipupiq Sunsixs

uo pjing “oAl] pup IsIA 01 92D|d 10343 puD UORDUIISIP UOIDII3J JOOPINO UD SD SUDIS) Jo uonowosd pup Sunaxipw ‘Suipubiq aroiduj

‘UOIJBUIISIP UOIIEBD.IDJ JOOPINO Ue sk AJ13uapl Jno adeysg:| jeon

¢ - V suolpy [euonippy v xipuaddy



S1921Y

Ayuno) ejoqi)

JO salunjioddo uoileasdal
J00pP1NO 3Y3 UOo uollew.ojul
apinoad 03 91Sgam
qnH SI92IY ue 3ulp|ing
Jo ssacoud ay3 ul s1 ‘Aquno)
e|oqid ayi 1e ‘uosieq] euuy

de|A 924n0S3aYy
Paliiu=p|

c AN ‘sjues |

uoneziueBi 10 Jsuped

i

198SY LONEBIdaY JOOPIND @ uonuaNy 10 Buixi4 spasN @

eap| Big 10 Ajunpodd) @ jessy Ajunwwio)d @

Aunwiues 19sn S19 Ay} PUB ‘SI0INGUILCD depiaRnSUad0 SSlIN | m i |
{0} {Buoy Buon) euD 183 ‘113w ‘veder us3 'AaAINg 30UBURIO TN JAISEDEY NO| '25Bg03D y -
‘NYOUN ‘SdN 'OV 'SDSN ‘00839 "dia) 4 juswaioul dewsaiu) uiuies umwmu = O i oc (8] 0
3
69
@
%
L. e/ iy
®
i
Ps NN.NW ey °
v8 19 19
[ *
09 mmo V.
S  99e
()
y € 9 o O
L Bggs
sy £ ®
Nv 18
)
®
9 Nwth wm hrt: 08
g mvowv ww Gle
=9 Nm mm.mw 9/ or4
&, of sl
°
wargy “ QN
O




S92V

‘'sollAjeue

pue 22u331||91Ul UOI1BD0| UO S| §|DIIY
104 SN204 ay3 ‘yons

SY 249U/ JO 90UII2S,, S| 01 JOW JIBY]
‘elep

a1ydes3093 azAjeue pue a8euew 11pa
‘M3IA 0] 24EM1JOS |e11edS033 SI S|DIIY

éSIDAIV SHIBYM o



"BaJE )

dewjesaH |eqo|9

VAVULS




MIIAIDAQ OJIX3N\ MON

dewieaH |eqo|9




Wa3sAS [1eAL ||IH Z14eND

de|n \ s
1e9H eAeJ1S eaJe |ed0T] NI

dewieaH |8qO|9 SPING [e3UBUNUY

Y
'3




UMOIUMOP

INO ul 1eay
9SeoaJdul 03 SI 0} |eOD

yein ‘qeoln

dewieaH |eqo|9




$OIWOU0D] SI9IEMpPESH - JUaWdO|9ASQ JIWoU0d]

_ . . uoneziuebio oiduou pue ‘suswiLISACD
/3uawdo|aAapP-01WOoU023/310 s1LIOU0I3sIa1eMpEdY//:sd1y B A e
ey ays soyderbowap pue awdoeasp
&1 SORUOUODT Siayempealy spee) uebaiy

S0y £° HiosiuouciasialempeayBuebaw

"q’yd ‘uosme] uebapy

SHUILVMAVIH

S SOIWONODS WM

SYILVMAVIH




Recreation
Dollars
Percentage
based on
GRT




deT vl

d4/9'S

1T

dastv'v

cd

d0'1

LC

SdV110d

ddd 40 %

DNDPDINVY

21215 AQ 91B31S UOI1EaII3Y JOOPINQ




‘d|ey papasau
yonwi Joj Sa1ouady 91e3s pue jesspad Yyum dew ayl uo aie 9p\
SeaJle 9402 Jn0J Ul SS920NS 0] dew peod e aney S\ e«
‘Aem
93 Uo a1ep aiow pue 339|dwod pue o} pied Apealje st YdIym e
B1EP pue YdJeasal Sinoy JO Sinoy pajidwod sAeY SN\ «

iOARY 9M Op 1BYM\




‘Pop=°N S ludie] ||V
SO ‘@|doad sisquinN
‘S1011P3 ‘SISMIMN
sioge

Qduel||v [ledL ejoqgi)
id|ay psau s\
jo4l4 e p|ingay "¢
'yans

pue s20(Q 3uluue|d ‘d|D| Uo 2q 03 Spa3au 1eYyM 335
$9]0J 1U344NJ Ul [|I} pUB M3IASJ 0} W} puads
:syue|q 9y3 || 03 824N0S3Y °C
11oddng '
:NOA woJ} paau am 1eym\




FY21 Audit Close

Out

Jaramillo Accounting Group (J.A.G.)

No Backup Documentation At This Time




Public Hearing

Ordinance
2022-002

County Maintained Road Ordinance




Cibola County Maintained

Road Ordinance
2022-002

Adopted




SECTION I: GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1 Purpose. The purpose of this Ordinance, hereinafter referred to as the Road Policy
Ordinance, is to establish policies and procedures for the orderly and consistent management and
administration of the Cibola County Maintained Road Network and to provide the Cibola County
Board of Commissioners a uniform process and system to ensure that fair and equitable treatment is
exercised to provide County Maintained Road services. The overall purpose of this document is to
establish standards for design and construction of safe and durable roads for the benefit of all
citizens of the County within the limitations of funding, manpower, and equipment available to the
County. The Commission strives to maintain County Maintained Roads to the best of its ability, given
its limited resources. Cibola County is responsible for maintaining approximately 300 miles of County
Maintained Roads, with very limited resources. Considering the number of miles and limited
resources, the Commission must prioritize its road network for maintenance.

1.2 Applicability. This Ordinance applies to all County Maintained Roads located within the
unincorporated areas of Cibola County, New Mexico. This Ordinance also applies to the platting,
design, and maintenance of any road within a proposed subdivision, in conjunction with the
requirements of the New Mexico Subdivision Act, NMSA 1978, Sections 47-6-1, et seq. (as
amended), and the Cibola County Subdivision Ordinance (as amended). Although there are many
roads owned by the County, the County is only required to maintain those roads it accepts for
maintenance. See, McGarry v. Scott, 2003-NMSC-016, (2003).

SECTION II: ROUTINE ADMINISTRATION OF THE ROAD NETWORK

21 Report and Resolution Presentation. On an annual basis, the Superintendent of the
RoadDepartment shall present a report to the Board of County Commissioners in a publicly held
Commission meeting for its consideration and approval which certifies to the Secretary of the New
Mexico Department of Transportation the total mileage, names, route, and location of public roads
maintained by Cibola County, pursuant to NMS 1978, Section 67-3-28.3 (1988). As part of the
presentation, the Road Department Superintendent will report to the Commissioners the total miles of
County-maintained roads in the network, any additions and/or deletions and estimated maintenance
cost of the network.

Also on an annual basis, the Road Department Superintendent shall present a resolution to the
Board of County Commissioners for its consideration and approval which authorizes the submission
of an application to the New Mexico Department of Transportation for assistance from the Local
Government Road Fund to perform necessary repair of and construction of roads in Cibola County,
authorizing the expenditure of matching funds for categories of the Local Government Road Fund
(i.e., CAP, CO-OP, and School Bus Routes) and recommend projects on which the funds may be
used. The roads approved by this resolution shall be the official road maintenance list of the County
and are the “Cibola County Maintained Roads.”

2.2 Cibola County Maintained Road Map. Each year a new updated map will be prepared
and submitted for approval to the Cibola County Commission.

2.3 Declaration of Cibola County Maintained Roads. All roads which have been
established as Cibola County Maintained Roads pursuant to the laws of New Mexico by the
following, and with acceptance by the Board of County Commissioners:

A. Petition and declaration by Cibola County Commissioners as recorded in
minutes of such proceedings.

Page 2 of 21



Dedication to use and benefit of the public by filed plat if approved and
adopted by the County Commission.

Deeded to Cibola County from the landowner by Warranty Deed, QuitClaim
Deed, or other legal deed.

Easement.

Prescriptive right.

Implied dedication.

Donation by owner.

Purchased by Cibola County. Power of eminent domain.
Other legal acquisition by Cibola County.

TIomMmmo O W

2.3.1 In certain instances, roads within existing County subdivisions have been declared and
dedicated to the use and benefit of the public but have not been accepted for County maintenance.
Nothing in this policy shall change or alter the status of those roads that currently exist but are not
maintained by Cibola County.

2.3.2 All roads, described above, are eligible to be Cibola County Maintained Roads.
2.2.3 All roads approved by the Road Maintenance Resolution and designated on the official Cibola
County Maintained Road Map (as updated) ARE HEREBY DECLARED to be Cibola County

Maintained Roads and are subject to this Ordinance.

SECTION lil: DEFINITIONS

Alley A minor right-of-way to provide supplementary access to the rear or side of
lots or tracts but not for primary access to lots or tracts or off-road parking
facilities.

Cul-de-sac A local road with an outlet at one end and a turn-around at the other.

Driveway Access to private property not open to the public.

Easement A grant by property owner (grantor), to a certain person or persons, the

general public, a corporation, or a specific utility or all utilities (grantees), of
the right to use land for a specific purpose, such as access or utility
extensions.

Easement by A method of obtaining legal easement by use. The easement

Prescription is created by an adverse use of land that is open or notorious, and
continued without effective interruption for the prescriptive period of ten
years. For a public easement by prescription the usage must be made by
the general public or county for the prescriptive time.
Note: some roads, utility easements, and trails are utilized by the public and
maintained by utility companies and even maintained by the County Road
Department without legal documentation. Historically, documentation of
earlier agreements has been lost and/or failure to properly document original
agreements has occurred. Any subdivider who owns properties so involved
in a subdivision, and/or contiguous to those involved in the subdivision, will
be asked to legally document such easements as a part of their act of
subdividing.

Page 3 of 21



Eminent The method that a government entity can use to condemn and purchase

Domain

Frontage
Road

Half road

Local road

Private road

Public road

Public
right-of-way

Rectilinear
street -
pattern

Road

Trail

Variance

Waiver of
Protest
Agreement

property for public right-of-way or easements for trails, roads, ditches, utilities,
or other purposes. This procedure has provisions for compensating the
owner after consideration of appraised value and for the impact on the value
of the property.

A local road parallel and adjacent to another road with limited access
points, normally a highway or a freeway.

A public right-of-way which is half the required width.

A road which is parallel to or branching from a collector or arterial road to
provide access to abutting properties and protection from through traffic.

A road which is privately owned, is not open to the public, is limited to specific
persons, and is not maintained by the County.

A local, arterial, or collector road that is owned outright by a government
entity or by legal easement, including a prescriptive easement or easement
by prescription, and open to the public and may or may not be maintained by
the County based on use, need and funds available.

The total area of land deeded, reserved by plat, dedicated or otherwise
provided for a highway, road, alley, and other public access to lots, or
easements to the Federal Government, State of New Mexico, or its political
subdivisions, for use by the public.

A development grid laid out with unbroken street patterns in straight lines
irrespective of topography representing minimal government expenditure
and maximum potential for land speculation.

An open way for vehicular traffic, whether designated as a street, highway,
thoroughfare, parkway, throughway, avenue, boulevard, land, place, or
otherwise designated, a public way dedicated, reserved by plat or otherwise
provided which affords the principal means of access to abutting property
units.

An easement to cross property for recreational purposes or to reach
recreational sites.

Subdivider’s request to be excused from specific requirements in the
subdivision regulations.

An agreement passing with the property to future owners which obligates
them to pay the costs of any requirement involved in a requested and
approved variance, if the County, for any reason, at any time in the future,
requires said requirements to be constructed.

Page 4 of 21



Table A

a. Private Road b. Private Easement c. Maintenance

Privately owned by individual Only for authorized persons Can be left un-maintained; can

or group. and use only as specified in be maintained by owner; or
easement, i.e.; road only or can be maintained by owner
utility and road, or one utility and/or users. County
only. maintenance PROHIBITED.

a. Owner pays taxes on the land under the easement.
b. Owner can grant others compatible usage for same or different purpose.
c. Entitled persons can sell or assign to public or other individuals unless prphibited when

granted.
a. Private Road b. Public Easement c. Maintenance
Privately owned by individual Public use only for specified Can be left un-maintained; can
or group. purpose(s). be maintained by grantor
and/or users. County
maintenance PROHIBITED.

a. Owner pays taxes on the land under the easement.

b. County can use easement, sell easement, assign it to others, to individuals, abandon it, or
return it to grantor unless otherwise specified when granted.

c. When given by an individual to the public or the County, it has to be accepted by the Board
of County Commissioners to be binding.

a. County Road b. Public Road c. Maintenance

Owned by the County; For vehicle, flood control Can be left un-maintained; can

received by deed, dedicated ditches, and utilities for public | be maintained by grantor

on subdivision plat or obtained | service. and/or users; or maintained by

by prescription or implied County if funds are available

dedication. v and Board of County
Commissioners authorize
maintenance.

a. County owns the land and no taxes are collected.

b. Itis formally accepted by County when subdivision is approved, or a legal document is
accepted.

c. County can allow public use, maintain, and develop it, sell it, assign it to individuals, to
groups, abandon it, return it to grantor, or give it to contiguous landowners, unless otherwise

specified.
SECTION IV: MAINTENANCE AND TREATMENT OF ROADS
4.1 General Provisions. Since there are limited funds available for road work each fiscal

year, the County must carefully review the requirements and costs of manpower, equipment, and
materials for road work currently being performed and the contractual or legal obligations requiring
road work during the upcoming fiscal year before workable and practical decisions can be made in

Page 5 of 21



regard to additional requests for road work.

4.2 County Maintained Road. A County Maintained Road is a road that has been accepted
for County maintenance. County ownership does not require maintenance unless it is placed on the
maintenance list. Each County Maintained Road is or will be assigned a number and/or a name.
Maintenance on County Maintained Roads mayinclude routine maintenance, as defined below,
pavement, asphalt, chip seal, grading, shredding, dust control, replacement of base coarse,
installation and repair of drainage structures, snow removal, pothole repair, signage, resurfacing,
weed control, mowing, and such other maintenance as may from time to time be determined. Routine
maintenance typically consists of blading as well as repairing potholes, patches, improvements,
repair and maintenance of existing cattle guards and culverts as further detailed herein.

4.3 Classification. For internal scheduling purposes only, the County Road Department may
classify County Maintained Roads according to their road surface,i.e., dirt, caliche, chip-seal,
pavement, asphalt.

4.4 Mowing or Weed Control. The County may use herbicides and mowing as part of its weed
management program. The use of herbicides and mowing on County Maintained Road rights-of-way will
be at the discretion of the Cibola County Road Department Superintendent.

4.5 Culverts. Culverts will be installed in such a manner as to align with the historic or established
drainage. However, this does not imply that Cibola County is responsible to maintain the drainage
channel beyond the limits of the right-of-way easement. Only in the event it is determined that such
maintenance of the drainage channel would directly benefit the County and the County has received
permission and indemnification from the property owners would the County consider performing work.

4.6 Traffic Signs/Pavement Striping. The placement of all traffic signs and pavement striping will be
performed in compliance with the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD). Materials shall be
in accordance with requirements of Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD). Speed limits will
be established based on State laws.

4.6.1 Road Sign Inspection process

a. When working or traveling on Cibola County roads, road department staff are expected
to monitor Cibola County Road and signage conditions and immediately report any hazard or defect to the
Road Superintendent’s office.

b. Sheriff Deputies routinely travel on Cibola County roads and are expected to monitor
Cibola County road and signage conditions and immediately report any hazard or defect to the Road
Superintendent’s office.

c. All other County employees traveling Cibola County Roads in the course of their job are
expected to monitor road and signage conditions and immediately report any hazard or defect to the Road
Superintendent’s office.

d. Citizen Complaint Reports: Periodically citizens report hazardous road or signage
conditions on Cibola County Roads. Employees receiving a complaint are expected to immediately
forward the complaint to the Road Superintendent’s office.

4.6.2 Mitigation efforts

All reports of unsafe road or signage conditions on Cibola County Roads will be
immediately reviewed by the Road Superintendent for a determination as to the seriousness of the hazard
and need for immediate mitigation. Road hazards and regulatory and warning signage issues should be

Page 6 of 21



addressed as soon as reasonably practicable.

4.6.3 Documentation
Hazards identified either through the inspection process or by citizen complaint will be
documented on a log in the Road Superintendent’s office
a. The log will indicate the reporting person’s name, date and time of report, hazard
description, hazard location, date mitigation completed, and corrective action taken.
b. The log will be maintained by the Road Superintendent for a minimum of 4 years.

4.7 Road Name Signs. The placement of road name signs will be in accordance with Manual on
Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD). Placement of a road name sign is completed for E-911
purposes and does not indicate County Maintained Road status. Road naming and signage procedures
are outlined in the Cibola County Rural Addressing Ordinance.

4.8 Obstructions and Injuries to Road. Under NMSA 67-7-1 through 67-7-2, no person may in
any manner obstruct or damage any County Maintained Road. Specifically,New Mexico law prohibits
any person from placing on any County Maintained Road a gate, fence, stone, timber, trees, or any
other obstruction. Additionally, New Mexico law prohibits any person from damaging any County
Maintained Road, including any culverts, cattle guards, signs, signposts, or bridges.

Any building, structure, vehicle, tree, plant, or anything else that is situated, placed, left, installed, or
otherwise located within a Cibola County Maintained Road easement can be removed, at any time,
without notice, by the Cibola County Road Department. Cibola County shall not be required to
reimburse any owner, property owner, resident, or anyone else for damages, costs, or expenses, or
be liable in any other way, for the County’s actions in removing any structure or item that is placed,
left, constructed or is otherwise in Cibola County Maintained RoadEasement.

4.9 Snow Removal. As with road maintenance, the County’s ability to remove snow from County
Maintained Roads is limited by available resources. The County has limited graders, plows, and
cindering trucks. As a result, it is necessary to prioritize snow removal. Snow removal shall proceed
in the following order, unless emergency situations dictate otherwise:

a. Those County Maintained Roads, which are essential for emergency services, shall be
the first priority for snow removal.

b. School Bus Routes. New Mexico law, at NMSA 1978, Section 22-16-10 (1975),
authorizes the County to remove snow on any school route. School Bus Routes shall be
the second priority for snow removal.

c. Thereafter, as time and equipment permits, the Road Department shall remove snow
from non-essential County Maintained Roads in the order of priority established for
routine maintenance. Specifically, after roads for essential emergency services and

school routes are cleared, the Road Department shall begin clearing quarterly
maintained roads.

410 Treatment of School Bus Routes. School bus routes that are on private roads will not be
maintained by the county. However, as noted above, the County is authorized by New Mexico law to
remove snow from any school bus route, including private roads. '

4.11 Establishing Speed Limits.

a) The speed limit on all County Maintained Roads shall be 35 mph, unless otherwise posted.

Page 7 of 21



b) Speed limits on roads in Cibola County may be changed, modified, or altered pursuant to
statutory provisions set forth in NMSA 1978, Section 66-7-303 (2016). The procedure for
changing or altering a speed limit on a County Maintained Road shall be as follows:

i) If the Cibola County Board of County Commissioners determines that the speed limit on
any specific road, or portion ofa road is greater or less than is reasonable or safe under
the conditions existing at that time, it will request an engineering survey and traffic
investigation on the same. Said engineering survey and traffic investigation shall be on a
form approved by the Secretary of the New Mexico Department of Transportation.

ii) The Cibola County Board of County Commissioners shall submit its request for change in
speed limit, together with the engineering survey and traffic investigation, to the New
Mexico Department of Transportation.

iii) If the Commission, after the engineering survey and traffic investigation is completed
decides to change or alter the speed limit, the alteration of the speed limit, as approved
by the New Mexico Department of Transportation shall be effective when appropriate
signs that conform to the specifications adopted bythe New Mexico Department of
Transportation, giving notice thereof, are erected along that particular part of said
CountyMaintained Road(s).
c) No speed limit in Cibola County, on any road, shall be declared to be greater than 75 miles
per hour.
d) Changes of speed limits in construction zones shall be authorizedpursuant to NMSA Sections
Section 66-7-303 and 66-7-304.

412 Temporary Road Closures. Any road closure of five days or less for an emergency or
temporary basis may be approved by the Road Superintendent. All road closures for more than five
days in length must be approved by the Board of County Commissioners. The Cibola County Road
Department shall use best efforts to maintain ingress and egress on all County Maintained Roads,
during temporary road closures.

413 Treatment of Private Roads.
a. Absent a declared emergency, the County shall not maintain any private road.
The County shall not remove snow from a private road unless the private roadis a
school bus route as set out above.

4.14 Request for Assistance to State for Inadequate Road Equipment.

In the event the County has inadequate equipment and machinery to grade and maintain County
Maintained Roads, as set forth, the Commission may request that the State Transportation
Commission furnish available equipment and machinery inthe vicinity, along with the operators and
personnel required to perform such work. Pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 67-4-4 (2003), in such a
case, consideration from the County to the State Transportation Commission would be limited to “the
actual costof the fuel, oil and wages of such operators and personnel involved in the work
performed.”

415 SPEED HUMP POLICY

4.15.1 PURPOSE.
Reducing excessive speeds on residential streets is an important objective in ensuring the
safety of pedestrians, cyclists, animals, and vehicles in neighborhoods, and in creating calmer
and more livable environment. Methods for discouraging speeding include enforcement,
education, and engineering efforts. While police enforcement remains the most effective

Page 8 of 21



means of dealing with speeding, limited resources prevent officers from covering the entire
problem locations at all times. In response to this concern, the county has developed this
policy which addresses engineering efforts, specifically the use of speed humps, as a “traffic
calming” technique for retrofit use in existing neighborhoods. Many drivers ignore statutory
and posted speed limits and, if the design of the road will allow them to do so, will drive at
speeds exceeding those which suit the conditions prevailing in residential areas. Various
physical devices have been developed to discourage this behavior; one of these devices is
the speed hump.

4.15.2. DEFINITION.

For the purpose of this resolution, the following definition shall apply unless the context clearly
indicates or requires a different meaning.

A. SPEED HUMPS.

1. SPEED HUMPS are generally 3-inch high, flat topped or cylindrical raised sections of
pavement, typically 12 to 22 feet in length in the direction of travel. The ends of

a SPEED HUMP are tapered to be flush with the street at the curb and gutter to allow
water to drain. SPEED HUMPS are spaced roughly 250 to 750 feet apart, and have been
proven to work by creating a vertical displacement of the vehicles traversing them. It
should be noted that SPEED HUMPS are not the typical speed “bump” frequently seen in
parking lots.

2. Installation of SPEED HUMPS must strictly adhere to approved designs. Typical flat-top
profile SPEEDS HUMP. FLAT-TOP SPEED HUMPS have been used successfully to
diminish speeds on roads with high volumes. WATT'S PROFILE SPEED HUMPS are
generally limited for use on roadways with volumes no greater than 3,000 vehicles per day
(vpd). In addition, advance warning signs must always be used conjunction with SPEED
HUMPS.

4.15.3 ENGINEERING CRITERIA.

B.

C.

A. Alternative traffic management strategies should always be pursued before the decision
made to install speed humps. These strategies include:

1. Reviewing, establishing, and/or revising and enforcing general laws and ordinances
pertaining to speed limits and other traffic control management items.

2. Educating residents and neighborhood groups so they can better understand
causes of traffic problems, potential solutions to these problems, and the advantages
and disadvantages of implementing different solutions. Installing specific regulatory,
warning, and guide message signs or other traffic control devices.

Speed humps are an effective and appropriate device for safely reducing vehicle speeds on
certain types of streets when all of these other speed control alternatives have been
investigated and determined to be ineffective. In order for speed hump installations to be
effective, they should be located selectively in accordance with defined transportation
engineering criteria. Proper installation will also minimize driver frustrations and encourage
safe driving practices.

If a location fails to meet any of the following criteria, the placement of speed humps
should not be recommended. :

4.15.4 Operation criteria.

Page 9 of 21



1. The functional classification of the roadway is a local or major local street.

2. Average weekly daily traffic (AWDT) volumes on the roadway segment are less than

3,000 vpd.

3. The posted speed limit of the roadway segment is 30 miles per hour (m.p.h.) or less.

4. The 85th percentile speed measured on the roadway segment exceeds the posted speed

limit by 10 m.p.h. or more. This criterion may be waived from dead-end streets.

5. The roadway segment is fronted by primarily (more than 50%) residential land uses.
4.15.5 Geometric Criteria.

1. The roadway has a vertical grade of 8% or less.

2. The roadway segment is paved.

3. The roadway segment has only 1 moving lane of traffic in each direction
4. The section length is greater than or equal to 2 blocks or 1200 feet.

5. The width of the street is greater than 18 feet.

4.15.6 General conditions.
The following general conditions should also be considered when locating speed humps:

1. Motorists should have adequate sight distance to react to speed humps.

2. Speed humps should not be placed over manholes, gate valves, utility vault accesses or

other similar features.

3. If a drainage inlet is near where a speed hump would be placed according to the general
spacing criteria, an attempt should be made to locate the hump just downstream of the inlet.

4. Speed humps should be placed to take advantage of existing street lighting.
5. Speed humps should not be placed in front of driveways.

6. Speed humps should be placed at property lines, if possible, rather than directly in front
of a residence.

7. Speed humps are placed perpendicular to the direction of travel.
8. Speed humps should not be placed within an intersection.

9. Speed humps should not be placed within a horizontal curve.

10. When curbs are not present, alternate means should be provided to discourage motorists

from driving around the speed hump.
11. Speed humps should follow the corresponding roadway cross-slope.
4.15.7 Neighborhood support.

1. (a) Property owners on the roadway segment must be in concurrence with the placement of
the speed hump(s) and will be allowed 1 vote of record. Concurrence will be indicated by the

signing of a petition to the county designee. The formula for calculating the percentage
required for petition acceptance is:

Percent of Lot Owners Supporting the Placement of Speed Humps in the Petition Area = 75-

(.25 (Percent Absentee Lot Owners in Petition Area)).

(b) The petition will clearly state that those signing the petition would accept all warning signs

and restricted parking associated with the placement of the speed hump(s).

2. Prior notification and written comments must also be obtained from local fire, rescue, and
police departments, as well as from transit providers and the transportation provider for the

local public schools.
4.15.8 Prioritization; implementation.

Page 10 of 21



1. The county will prioritize pending projects on a fiscal year basis by assigning points to each

project. Projects will be scheduled for detailed design and implementation based on their point
scores and the capital improvement funds available for the fiscal year. Points will be assigned

as follows:

(a) Speed. wa points will be assigned for every 1 m.p.h. that the 85th percentile
speed is above the speed limit for the roadway.

(b) Pedestrian activity and facilities. Ten points will be assigned if the street has no
sidewalks; 5 points will be assigned if the street has sidewalks on only 1 side or has
discontinuous sidewalks. In addition, 10 points will be assigned for each pedestrian
generator along the roadway section, for instance, a school playground, or park, and 5
points will be assigned if the street is designated as an on-road bike path.

c) Street width. Five points will be assigned if the combination of street width and
parking characteristic results in areas of single land, alternating flow.

2. The street yielding the highest numerical point score will be considered to have the highest priority.
The street with the earliest application date will have the highest priority among streets with the same
point score. :

3. When a budgeted amount for speed humps has been approved, the county will, starting at the top
of the ranking list and proceeding in descending order, determine which installations will be funded
from the budgeted amount. Representatives of the applicants for all approved speed hump
installations will be notified of which requests have been funded for the upcoming fiscal year.

4. As funding allows, preference shall be given to those roads qualifying for speed humps for which
other improvements are already planned to be constructed.

4.15.9 Exceptions.
On roadways which are classified as collectors, an exception may be granted to allow for
speed humps if the traffic volume on the roadway is less than 3,000 vpd. The procedure for
installation shall remain the same as outlined in this policy. Each case will be reviewed
individually, and a determination will be made based on consideration of adjacent land uses,
function in the transportation system, and safety. In all cases, should speed humps be
installed, the speed humps will be removed when the roadway volume
exceeds 3,000 vpd. :

4.15.10 SPEED HUMP REQUEST AND INSTALLATION PROCEDURE.

A. The initial request for the installation of speed humps must originate from an owner of
property on the candidate street. A request in writing from the owner or his or her
representative must be forwarded to the county.

B. A preliminary determination of eligibility based on available traffic data will be made in a
timely manner. Eligibility will be determined using the preliminary evaluation form shown
promulgated by the Department.

1. If the roadway segment is determined not be eligible, the applicant(s) will be notified
in writing, with the reason(s) for rejection being given.

2. If the street is determined to be eligible for consideration, a meeting will be arranged
between the applicant(s) and county staff to define the petition area and the

Page 11 of 21



approximate speed hump location range. The applicant(s) will then be instructed to

submit a petition with signatures of 75% of the property owners in the petition area

indicating support the installation of speed humps as provided in the speed hump

policy. (Only 1 signature per parcel of property will be accepted). Only petition forms

supplied by the county or exact duplicates may be used for this purpose. (Exhibit A)
C. After verification of the petitions, the county will conduct the necessary transportation
engineering studies and solicit comments and recommendations from other agencies. A
determination of the street’s eligibility for speed hump installation will then be made in a timely
manner, based on all of the criteria of the speed hump policy as shown in the detailed
engineering evaluation form.

D. The county will annually prioritize pending projects on a fiscal year basis by assigning points to
each project. Projects will be scheduled for detailed design and implementation based on their
point scores and the capital improvements funds available for the fiscal year.

1. The street yielding the highest numerical point score will be considered to have the
highest priority. The street with the earliest application date will have the highest
priority among streets with the same point score.
2. When a budgeted amount for speed humps has been approved, the county will,
starting at the top of the ranking list and proceeding in descending order, determine
which installations will be funded from the budgeted amount. Representatives of the
applicants for all approved speed hump installations will be notified of which requests
have been funded for the upcoming fiscal year.
E. The process for speed hump removal or alteration by residents is the same as the process for
installation.

F. The county reserves the right to install, remove, or alter any speed hump for the health,
welfare, and safety of the public.

G. Speed humps recommended as part of a system level analysis to address traffic flow and
control for a particular area of the county will not be subject to the provisions of this
policy

SECTION V: AGREEMENT REQUIRED FOR EXCHANGE OF BENEFITSFOR ROAD WORK

5.1 County Work on Privately Owned Property. The County shall not perform work or
perform any services on privately owned roads or property.

5.2 Transfer of Title. The private party agrees to transfer title to all improvements installed on
the County Maintained Road or property, suchas material, cattle guards, culverts or other items, to
Cibola County after said items and property have been installed and accepted by the Cibola County
Road Superintendent.

5.3 Mowing of grass in right of way, pushing snow, and trash and debris clean-up. This
is not included as “work on County Roads by private parties”. The policies listed in this ordinance
are meant to keep destructive acts from happening on County Maintained Roads. This is not meant
to deter the general public from good faith efforts to clear County Maintained Roads of weeds, snow
or trash and debris.

Page 12 of 21



71

SECTION VI: ROAD MAINTENANCE / ACCEPTANCE / SCHEDULING
SECTION VII: PROCEDURE ACCEPTING A COUNTY ROAD

General Provision A road may be accepted or vacated from County Maintenance only by the

following procedure:

7.2

Minimum required standards for acceptance:

A. The road must have existed for at least five (5) years and documentation of
that fact must be provided by petitioners

B. The road must serve a minimum of four (4) households

C. Petitioners shall provide reasonable documentation, or other proof that a
reasonable, good faith effort has been made to develop and improve the road
to meet minimum County Road Improvement standards.

D. No road will be considered for county maintenance unless the right-of-way is
dedicated to the county. If maintenance is being requested on a road, which is
not dedicated, the initial step in acquiring periodic maintenance shall be the
dedication of the right-of-way to the county. The point of contact to coordinate
the dedication maintenance request is the Cibola County Roads Department,
700 Roosevelt Ave Suite 50, Grants, NM 87020, phone 505-285-2570.
Information will be provided on procedures and requirements that must be
followed in the dedication process.

Application for County Acceptance:

. Upon the receipt of an approved petition (Exhibit B) from all the resident(s) and owner(s) of an

existing private road for acceptance by the county, the Road Superintendent shall determine if the
road meets the minimum standards for county roads together with the needs, if applicable, of
necessary construction to bring the road up to standards with particular attention to the soil content.
The Road Superintendent shall provide a cost estimate to bring the road up to county specifications.

. Roads that are not within the boundaries of an approved subdivision must have right-of-way

transferred to the county through a warranty deed, or other type of document acceptable to the
County Attorney. In addition, the county will require proof of clear title, and may require title insurance
to be provided and paid for at the expense of the person(s) dedicating the right-of-way or road to the
county. Person(s) dedicating right-of-way must pay for and furnish a legal survey and plat of
proposed dedication prepared by a registered land surveyor, meeting minimum standards for land
surveying in New Mexico. '

. The Superintendent, the Community Development Director, and the Rural Addresser shall review

the proposed road and provide a written analysis of the impact of the road on adjoining county roads
together with related concerns of the departments. Such report shall reflect approval of affected
utility easement holders. The Emergency Manager shall review the proposed road for safety
concerns involving ingress and egress and other related concerns in a written analysis. The
Superintendent shall not submit the petition for dedication until all county departments have
submitted reports, including the Superintendent's report, with all agency comment. The
Superintendent shall provide to the owner(s) of the road the responses by the county departments
to bring the road in compliance with county regulations. Upon substantial completion by the owner(s)
of the conditions addressed by the various county departments or if the road meets the specified
health, safety and welfare requirements set forth in this section, the Superintendent shall submit the
petition and agency comments to the County Manager for presentation to the Board of County

Page 13 of 21



Commissioners (Board).

D. The Board may, in its discretion in extraordinary circumstances, grant a full or partial waiver in order
to accept roads for maintenance that do not otherwise meet the above road standards if the
acceptance of the road is essential to the protection of the public health, safety and welfare, with the
understanding that county maintenance of accepted roads will be undertaken with available funding
and pursuant to priorities for road maintenance county-wide.

E. Considerations to be used in determining whether a full or partial waiver is granted are:
1. Number of occupied dwellings on the road
2. Whether the road is a collector or local access road;
3. Whether the road is an established school bus route;
4. Whether mail deliveries are made on the road;
5. Accessibility to dwellings of emergency service, medical and fire protection due to
inclement weather;
6. The adequacy of driving space and water runoff.

7.3 Maintenance Acceptance
Acceptance of dedication is reserved for the Board who has the option to accept the dedication, to
not accept the dedication, or to accept the dedication contingent upon roads being constructed in
conformance with county standards and specifications and this chapter.

7.4 Road Exclusions
Roads within subdivisions, which are not dedicated to public use by disclosure on the plat, will not be
accepted by the county for maintenance. The responsibility for maintenance of private roads is with
the developer, owner, or the purchasers. Temporary, courtesy, or emergency maintenance by the
county does not constitute an implied acceptance of maintenance by the county.

SECTION VIiI: ABANDONMENT OR VACATION OF A COUNTY ROAD

The Board of County Commissioners may determine that any road or part of road currently designated as
a County maintained road may no longer be needed, or the repairs of the same may be burdensome and
in excess of the benefits conferred. In this case, the Board of County Commissioners will complete the
following procedure. '

8.1  Viewing:
At a regular meeting, the Commission shall appoint three members who meet the requirements
described in NMSA 1978, Section 67-5-4 and Section VI. 4 of this policy to view such road or part
of road. These members will evaluate the road or part of road against the criteria found in Section
V1.4, and compile a report setting forth fully their findings.

8.2 Notice of viewing:

Any person with a real property interest in the road or who’s property abuts the
road will be notified of the evaluation by Certified letter by the Road Review Board
or County Staff.

8.3 Report, Recommendations and Vacation:
The Road Review Board report will be presented to the Board of County Commissioners at its next
regular meeting. If the report recommends a discontinuance of such road or part of road, then the
Board of Commissioners may order the same vacated or abandoned for maintenance. If a road is

Page 14 of 21



ordered vacated the land will revert to the owners of the servient estate.

8.4 Abandonment for Maintenance Only:
If the road or part of road is ordered vacated for maintenance purposed only, the Road Department
shall perform a final set of maintenance activities on the affected road and remove all applicable
signage. Public access easements for the road are not vacated by this process and will remain
intact. The Board of County Commissioners may, in its sole discretion, vacate a road for
maintenance without following the provision of this Ordinance by removing the road or portion of
the road from the County’s maintained road list by amending the County Maintained Road
Resolution. If a road is abandoned for maintenance only the County will retain ownership of the
road and may elect to re-commence maintenance per this Ordinance.

SECTION IX. INFRASTRUCTURE PLACEMENT PERMIT REQUIREMENTS

9.1 General Rule.

Private parties or organizations shall not perform any type of construction or other activity such as,
but not limited to, utility installation, cattle guard or culvert installation, or constructing a
driveway/road intersection without first applying for and securing a Road Infrastructure Placement
Permit from the Cibola County Road Department, thereafter, complying fully with all provisions and
standards set forth in the Permit.

9.2  Authority.

The Cibola County Road Superintendent has the authority and power necessary to issue road
infrastructure permits, in accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance, and with the form Exhibit (X)
and incorporated herein by reference. The County Road Superintendent may deny such application if, in
the Superintendent’s opinion, the application would unduly burden the County’s ability to maintain the
road in question, or if granting the application would unduly threaten public safety.

9.3 Permit Conditions.
Any and all Applicants for permits under this Replace shall agree to the following conditions:

9.3.1 Applicant agrees to repair and replace the road surface disturbed by the project to at
least the quality of the surface prior to the project.

9.3.2 Applicant agrees to adequately compact and smooth the road surface immediately
upon completion of the project.

9.3.3 Applicant agrees to conduct the project in a manner so that one (1) lane of through-
traffic is available on the roadway at all times, unless advance special permission is
obtained for complete closure.

9.3.4 Applicant agrees to adequately mark the project and notify the public using the
affected roadway of work in progress.

9.3.5 Applicant agrees to bury any cable or other infrastructure a minimum depth of twenty-
four inches (24”).

9.3.6 Applicant agrees to put of barriers and warning devices and to light the work in

Page 15 of 21



9.4 Appeals.

progress so as to warn the public using the affected roadway of any danger.

9.3.7 Applicant agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the County for any claim or liability
of any kind whatsoever, which arises out of the use of this permit.

9.3.8 Applicant, and Applicants’ heirs and assigns, understand and accept that this permit
in no way conveys any property interest to Applicant or Applicant’s heirs and assigns,
beyond simple permission to use a County Road in the manner specified in this Permit.

9.3.9 Applicant, and Applicant’s heirs and assigns, understand and accept that this permit
does not provide any guarantee or otherwise warrant the condition of the County’s title to
any particular easement or County Road.

9.3.10 The location and/or duration of this permit may not be changed without prior express
approval of the County.

9.3.11 Applicant, and Applicant’s heirs and assigns, understand and accept that the
issuance of this permit does not obligate the County in any way with respect to
maintenance of the County Road, or maintaining the location of the County Road, or with
preserving the Applicant’s, or Applicant’s heirs and assigns, use of the County Road.

9.3.12 Applicant agrees to provide upon request, by the Road Superintendent, any permits
required for the project by either the State of New Mexico or the United States.

9.3.13 The Applicant must be licensed & bonded and a performance bond in the amount of
$1,500 shall be delivered to the Road Department, by the Applicant, prior to the issuance of
a permit by the Road Superintendent. The performance bond shall be kept on file at the
Department along with the Applicant’s license and insurance documents. In extenuating
circumstances where the Applicant is a private party and is not licensed and bonded, the
Road Superintendent may authorize the Applicant to provide a refundable cash deposit in
lieu of a performance bond. The deposit shall be refunded upon the Road Superintendent’s
inspection of the project and determination that the road surface has be satisfactorily
repaired and replaced.

9.3.14 The Applicant understands that Road Superintendent may in his/her discretion
require that the Applicant’s bond or deposit be increased if the Road Superintendent
determines that due to the scope of the project $1,500.00 would not adequately cover the
County’s cost to repair and replace the road surface.

Any party who is or may be adversely affected by a decision of the County Road Superintendent in
approving or disapproving a Road Utility Permit shall appeal the Road Superintendent’s decision to the
County Commission within thirty (30) days of the date of the decision. The County Commission shall hear
the appeal and shall render a decision within thirty (30) days of the date the County Commission receives
the notice of appeal and shall also make a written record of its proceedings by stating in the record the
basis for its decision and shall make available, for a reasonable fee, a transcript of the proceedings as the
written record of the basis of the decision.

9.5 Application Fee.

Each application shall be submitted with an application fee of $75.00, or more, as the
County Commission may from time to time determine by resolution.

Page 16 of 21



SECTION X. ENFORCEMENT; PENALTY

10.1 The County Road Superintendent, a designated County code enforcement officer, or the County
Sheriff may commence criminal prosecution of violations of this Ordinance by issuing a written citation
charging the violation or by filing a criminal complaint.

10.2 Each criminal violation of this Ordinance shall be punishable by a fine of no more than $300,
and/or imprisonment for no more than 90 days, or both.

10.3 The County Manager or his/her designee may pursue in addition to criminal prosecution any lawful
civil remedy and penalty in a court of competent jurisdiction. The County Manager or his/her designee
may bring suit to collect any sums due and owing and /or to restrain, enjoin, or otherwise prevent the
violation of this Replace; or compel compliance, and shall be entitled to reasonable attorney’s fees and
costs in the suit.

10.4 The County Manager or his/her designee is authorized to bring a civil action against
person violating this Replace pursuant to the provisions of NMSA 1978 Section 30-8-8 (1963).

SECTION XI. SAVINGS CLAUSE
If any article, section, paragraph, clause, word, or phrase of this Replace is held to be invalid or
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the
remaining provisions of this Replace.

SECTION Xll. REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS
Cibola County Ordinance 82-1 and Cibola County Ordinances and Resolutions relating to or which are in

conflict with the above provisions, are hereby repealed, by the adoption of this Ordinance.

PASSED, ORDAINED and ADOPTED by the Board of County Commissioners of the County of Cibola at
its regular meeting on the day of 2022.

THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS:

Daniel J. Torrez, Chairman

Martha Garcia, 15t Vice-Chair
ATTEST:

Christine Lowery, 2" Vice-Chair

Michelle E Dominguez, County Clerk Ralph Lucero, Commissioner

Robert Windhorst, Commissioner

Page 17 of 21



Exhibit A
Speed Hump Petition to Cibola County Commission

Petition Organizer: Date:
Address: Phone #:
Email:

We, the undersighed, petition Cibola County to INSTALL OR REMOVE (Circle option) a speed hump at:

Road. We understand the following requirements are outlined in the
Cibola County Speed Hump Policy. ’

1. Property owners on the roadway segment must be in concurrence with the placement of the speed
hump(s) and will be allowed 1 vote of record. Concurrence will be indicated by the signing of a petition
to the county.

2. The petition will clearly state that those signing the petition would accept all warning signs and
restricted parking associated with the placement of the speed hump(s).

3. Prior notification and written comments must also be obtained from local fire, rescue, and

police departments, as well as from transit providers and the transportation provider for the local
public schools.

No. Name Address ‘ ~ Signature

—
.

0 N A O Dd

—
o

—
—r
.

—
L

—
W

Page 18 of 21




14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25,

26,

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41,

42.

43.

Page 19 of 21




Exhibit B

Petition for County Road Maintenance to Cibola County Commission

Petition Organizer: Date:
Address: Phone #:
Email:

We, the undersigned, petition Cibola County to accept for maintenance the following County Road:

Road. We undersianvd the following requirements are outlined in the

Cibola County Maintained Road Ordinance.

1. The road has been in existence for at least five (5) years with attached documentation provided.
2. The road serves a minimum of 4 households. Total number of households =

3. Petitioners have made efforts to develop and improve the road to the minimum county road
improvement standards as outlined in section 6 of the Cibola County Maintained Road Ordinance
with attached documentation provided.

4. All petitioners agree to dedicate the right of way on the above specified road to Cibola County.
Title search, title insurance, right of way survey, and draft right of way deeds to be attached to this
petition.

No. Name Address Signature

—
-

VR NSO AN

—
o©

—
—
.

—
»

Page 20 of 21




13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22,

23.

24,

25,

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34,

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42,

43.

Page 21 of 21




Public Hearing

Ordinance
2022-003

Restricting Open and Controlled Burns in
the Unincorporated Areas of Cibola County




Ci1BOLA COUNTY
ORDINANCE 2022-003
RESTRICTING OPEN AND CONTROLLED BURNS
IN THE UNINCORPORATED AREAS OF CIBOLA COUNTY

WHEREAS, the Cibola County Board of Commissioners met upon notice of
meeting duly published at the Cibola County Administration Building, 700 East
Roosevelt Ave., Suite 50, Grants, NM 87020, on , 2022, at 5:00 p.m. as
required by law; and,

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 3-18-1 (1972) provides that municipalities,
and also counties pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 4-37-1 (1995), have the power to
“protect generally the property of its municipality and its inhabitants” and to “preserve
peace and order”; and,

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 4-37-1 et seq. provides that counties may
adopt ordinances, not inconsistent with statutory or constitutional limitations placed on
counties, to discharge those powers necessary and proper to provide for the safety,
preserve the health, promote the prosperity and improve the morals, order, comfort and
convenience of the county and its inhabitants; and,

WHEREAS, the New Mexico State Administrative Code proscribes certain open
burning and does not preempt more stringent controls provided by any local law. NMAC
20.2.60.6(A).

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners provide and declare a
moratorium on open and controlled burning as detailed herein within the unincorporated
area of the County; and,

WHEREAS, during severe or extreme drought, even campfires may ignite
devastating wildfires; and,

WHEREAS, the possibility of fire situations will severely tax current local, state
and federal resources; and,

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners finds that there exists a danger
to the public health, safety, and welfare of Cibola County.

Page 1 of 3



NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED AND PROCLAIMED BY THE BOARD
OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, THAT:

Section 1. The Board of County Commissioners hereby declares that unrestricted
burning represents a significant threat to the peace, safety, health and
welfare of Cibola County.

Section 2. The following types of open burning shall be prohibited unless a
permit is obtained from the Cibola County Fire Marshal: Open burning
other than campfires ("Campfire" means a fire set for cooking, warming,
or ceremonial purposes, which is not more than three feet in diameter by
three feet high, and has had the ground five feet from the base of the fire
cleared of all combustible material).

There is an EXCEPTION for fires burned for ceremonial purposes on or
near Indian Lands.

Section 3. Campfires may be prohibited by Order of the Cibola County Fire
Marshal/Emergency Manager.

Section 4. ENFORCEMENT
The Sheriff’s Department of Cibola County, the Cibola County Fire
Marshal’s Office, and any other legally qualified law enforcement officer
or any of their agents shall have the ability to enforce this Ordinance.

Section 5. PERMITS
The Cibola County Fire Marshal may issue burn permits to allow for the
setting of fires (any fire that is not a campfire) between the hours of 5:00
am and 10:00 pm. The Fire Marshal may grant or deny permits to burn
based on the relative humidity, wind conditions and available county fire-
department manpower in the area of the proposed burn. The Fire Marshal
may place additional conditions on a burn permit based on the condition of
the area to be burned and atmospheric conditions at the proposed burn
time. The permit may be revoked at any time by the Fire Marshal if the
conditions for a safe burn cease to exist. ‘

Forms and instructions concerning permitting may be obtained from the
Fire Marshal, at local fire departments, or on the County’s website.

Section 6. PENALTIES
Any violation of this Ordinance/Proclamation shall be deemed a
misdemeanor and punishable by a fine of not more than three hundred
dollars ($300) and/or up to 90 days in jail.

Section 7. SEVERABILITY

Page 2 of 3



If any article, section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase,
provision or portion of any article, section, subsection, paragraph,
sentence, clause, phrase or provision in this Ordinance is, for any reason,
held to be unconstitutional, invalid or void, the remaining portion shall not
be affected since it is the express intention of the Cibola County Board of
County Commissioners to pass such article, section, subsection,
paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase or provision and every part thereof
separately and independently from every other part.

Section 8. REPEALER
Cibola County Ordinance 2019-001 is repealed upon the effective date of
this Ordinance.

Approved, Adopted, and Ordained this day of 2022.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

DANIEL TORREZ, CHAIR

MARTHA GARCIA, 157 VICE-CHAIR

CHRISTINE LOWERY, 2™° VICE-CHAIR

RALPH LUCERO, MEMBER

ROBERT WINDHORST, MEMBER

ATTEST BY:

MICHELLE E. DOMINGUEZ, COUNTY CLERK

Page 3 of 3



Resolution 22-29

Acceptance of FY21 Audit Report




CiBOLA COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
RESOLUTION Ne 22-31
ACCEPTING THE FY 2020-21 AUDIT REPORT

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners met in a regularly scheduled meeting on
Thursday, May 26, 2022, at 5:00 p.m. in the Cibola County Administration Building 700
Roosevelt, Grants, New Mexico 87020; and,

WHEREAS, the County of Cibola is required by statute to contract with an independent
auditor to perform the required annual audit for Fiscal Year End 2021. The Cibola County
Board of County Commission has directed the accomplishment of the audit be completed; and,

WHEREAS, NMAC 2.2.2.10 (M)(4) provides in pertinent part that “{o}nce the audit report
is officially released to the agency by the state auditor (by a release letter) and the required
waiting period of five calendar days has passed, unless waived by the agency in writing, the audit
report shall be presented by the IPA to a quorum of the governing authority of the agency at a
meeting held in accordance with the Open Meetings Act, if applicable;”.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the governing body of Cibola County does

hereby accept and approve the completed audit report and findings as indicated within this
document.

APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this 26™ day May 2022.

Daniel Torrez, Chair Martha Garcia, 1% Vice-Commissioner

Christine Lowery, 2" Vice-Chair Robert Windhorst, Commissioner

Ralph Lucero, Commissioner
ATTEST:

Michelle E. Dominguez
Cibola County Clerk



Resolution 22-29

NMFA Grant Closeout and Approval




Our Vision

CIBOLA COUNTY
&’/f(/ﬁ/%ée/(&/w F /d/(

Update 2022

Our Mission

By 2025, we will have a unified, cooperative and
effective Cibola County organization that has
built solid financial, infrastructural and economic
foundations for long-term sustainability.

We ensure wise, accountable and transparent
stewardship of public revenues and expenses.
We provide leadership and management of high-

quality and responsive services to improve quality
of life and economic opportunities for the citizens
and communities of Cibola County.

Cibola County strives to Promote orderly and efficient
use of land within Cibola County to ensure the health,
safety and welfare while balancing preservation and

growth.

Land Use

Cibola County strives to engage and support
sustainable housing development activities that
ensure the adequate supply of quality housing options
for current and future residents.

Housing

Cibola County strives to improve the local
transportation network to increase accessibility,
safety, reliability, and interconnectivity to support the
everyday lives of Cibola residents.

Transportation

Cibola County strives to actively cultivate
partnerships that encourage, support, and implement
essential community infrastructure to serve county
residents and maximize county resources.

| Infrastructure &
 Service Facilities

- Preservation of County Land
- Urban & Semi-Urban

Development

- Focused Development
- Sustainable Development
- Intergovernmental

Collaboration

+ Housing Market Analysis

- Affordable Housing

- Housing Stock & Quality

+ Public - Private Partnership
- Infrastructure

- Standards & Regulation

- Agreements & Policy
+ Prioritized Maintenance &

Development

- Regional Connectivity
- Intergovernmental

Collaboration

- Transportation Alternatives
- Environmental Protection

- Collaborative Implementation
+ Critical Projects

- Asset Management

- Staff Capacity

- Action Planning

- State & Federal Funding

Programs



Cibola County strives to promote and support the
expansion of economic opportunity; to stabilize,
expand, and diversify in the County tax base; and to
strengthen economic resiliency of County citizens and
families.

Economic
Development

Cibola County strives to ensure long-term,
sustainable, and quality water supply for the
residents, households, economic activities, public
services, and environmental sustainability.

Cibola County strives to ensure community-wide
preparedness to reduce the loss life, damage to
existing community assets, and to effectively mitigate
hazards present within the county.

- Hazard Mitigation

Cibola County strives to develop an organizational
culture that drives excellence, positive
communication and cooperation both internally and
externally, while strengthening the County’s outreach
and working relationships with municipal, tribal &
other agencies & communities.

ilntergovernmental
~ Cooperation

Cibola County strives to improve the budgeting &
financial management system to ensure the County’s
financial stability, accountability & transparency into
the future.

Fiscal Impact

- LEDA Plan

+ Economic Development Fund
« Inter-Agency Cooperation

- Local Priorities

- Workforce Development

- Leadership

- Housing Development

- Land For Development

- Energy Development

- Agriculture Preservation & Dev.
- Micro enterprise Support

- Long-Term Water Supply

- Conservation & Maintenance
- Contamination

- Infrastructure Improvements
+ Continuity of Operations

- Hazard Mitigation Plan
- Active Shooter or Domestic

Terrorist Strategies

- Emphasis on Water & Wildfire

Hazards

- Drainage & Storm water Master

Plans

- Capital Improvements
+ Public Information

- Listening Sessions

- Cibola Planning Office

+ Mutual Support

- Joint Land Use Planning

- Strategic Network & Active

Partnership

- Service Improvements
- Tribal PILT

- Investments

+ Buildings & Properties

- Cost & Revenue Sharing

- Federal, State, & Local Policy



ued ayijo
sjuswsa)e e buiApspun “Ayoeded sounose. uewiny
sAuno) auyy 0} syeads Juawia)3 Juswsbeuey syl

wied6o.d a2IAI8S JsWolsn)

ueld uoesuadwo) pajepdn

4ess e Joy sueyd JuswidolaAsp 1euoissajo.d

196pnq 3 wedbod yuswdojaasp yeys/Buiutey Anenb-ybiH

3)eJow ye)s paseaunu|
Ayoeded pue aoueuLiopad yejs paoldu)
paule}al ae Jjeis

18W aJe spaau BuliH

‘payndn
sl ajeJow ejs pue papirod aue saiunpioddo yimolb
safo1dwa ‘JoW aJe Spasu 824N0Se. UBWINY 8JNsSUB 0] Wes)
1ess sAlunog ayy Jo Juswdojenap pue poddns sroudw
awdojaAaq HeIS :9-S

‘Ajuno) a8y} ssooe
SBIIUNLUILLIOD LM 19 S3IIIUS J8Y30 yim ‘uoiieziuefio
Aunog ay) Uiyiim uoiieladood 3 UoedIunuwod
poob Bujowod (2) pue diysispes) saioeo.d
Bunspow (q) * A1y1e sous)edxa, ay) buryndn (e) jo
YIOM P10J-€ B} SepnaUl Juswss J16s1e)S Siy |
juawa)3 Juonesadoo) jejuswuianobiaiul,

we.bo.d diysispesT-sa1Ales angnd

1020)0.d SUOIBIIUNWILIOY 1euoISSajo.d

ue|d uoljediunwiwio) Ajunog)

uolysod jsnenads uoliediunwiwio)
Buipyng-diysuoneiad

pue yoeano Joj wajsAs 5 yoeoudde ‘uerd jeuonouny

20IAIBS
2ngnd Jo suonepedxs ¥ syuswalinbal Ny 3 pueiSIBpUN YRS 3 S) 0 'sajepipue)

suszio pue yeys Buowe S)sixa ,90usN190%3 J0 YT,

auniny sAluno) ay) Bunoaye sanssi uo diysiapes) aAioeo.d sjepow pue Jno salued Ajuno)
sausbe usupied yym

Ayewiaixa pue jauuosiad pue siapes) Ajunog e Buowe Ajjeulsiur uonediunwwod paodul|
sdiysuoije)a. BUMIOM PUB SUOHEDIUNWILIOD eLLId)xa paro.du|

18uuos.ad Aouabe Jsuiied pue Ajunwiwiod yiim snuy paacddu|

‘SaIIUNUIW0D 1§ sanuabe
Jayi0 3 1equy qedipiunut yum sdiysuoneisd Buisiom pue
yoeayno sAuno) ayy Buiuayibuaas ayym Apeussixe pue
Apeulaiur yiog uoneladood pue uoliedunwwod aalisod
'32UB)182X3 SAALIP Jey} aInjnd jeuoijeziuebo ue dojeasq
diysiapea aajesadoo) ;G-

‘plemlo)
Buiob yibualys 1edsly ansus 0} papaau saibeielis
Aay pue sawooino ayy sybnybly ued 1eais
Juawag Joedwyjesstd,

Wa)SAS Jipne 1euJa)ul

diystapes) s yeis Joj Buiuiel) uswabeuew jenueuly
diyspemajs 1esse 1eaisAyd Joj uerd Jusulisaau|
apedfidn wa)sAs Juswsbeuely jernueuly

anjeniul Juswabeuew jans)-nwy/Aouaiedsued 1ebpng

Ss)pne ues)
Auygeunodoe 5 Aousiedsuel) pasealou)
18bpng diBaje.s 1§ a)gels ‘AynesH

‘aunjny ay) ojur Aouaedsuely
15 Aligeuncaoe Anige)s 1eiueuly SAJUN0Y eyl 8nsus o)
wiaishs swabeuew jenueul 5 Bunsbpng ay) aroidw
asueuld fjuno) :y-g

Yoedy § aziyold 0} SSAIRNIUL Y SBUW0JIN0
Aax 1no Buiyn Aq snooy a1bsjelis Ajuno) seoueyus
ueld 1eis 8y pajelep Alan ade d)| 3 ueld dwo)

juawa|3 ,Saljie 3 aunpnliseyul,

njiinesg 3 ues)g eoqiy

ABe1e.lS JusWISaAU| TeIny paJs)uad-Alunwwo)/Lsiq
196png 3 we.ubold yuswanoiduw 1ende)

SANEI}IUI UOfeINPa 1§ uolieudlojul angnd

anljeniul 3y ABojouyas) snjonuseyu)

saoeds angnd 3 sa.eyybno.ouy) ‘SaIIUNWILIOD Uea))
JuswidolaAsp aunpnJiseyur 1edny

UOHEAIBSUOD ejusluoIAUT

suonieAouul ABojouydsy Jews,

‘3411 4o Amenb aaoudwi pue yimoub d1wouods 1oddns
0} S)UBWAOIBA3P 1§ S3SSAUISNG ‘SSIIUNWILLIOD ‘Sployasnoy
Buiniss ainpnyseyur sy puedxa pue apelbdn
aunpnJsequ ig-g

diysusuped 5 Buiuued psjeulpiood
aJinbau im paau apimAluno) siy) Bunsaiy
Juswaig Suisnoy,

ULI0JaYy Wid)sAs aoueul BuisnoH
ueld buisnoH s1gepoyy Ajuno)
ABejeuys yuswdojanaq BuisnoH pajeulpioo)

B]E}S BUWODUI JjB 0} 81q1SS820e 1§ a1qeyieAe si Buisnoy sigepoyy
spJepue)s Ajajes 5 ynesy angnd yim paubie pue sjes si buisnoH
SpuBLUSP 1B20) 84NNy PUe JusInd S)ea Yo0)s BuisnoH

‘S8DUBN}ISUOD
a1dimnuw Joy Buisnoy s1geulelsSnS | s)qepJoye ‘sjes
2.NSU3 0} UoNe.10geNod ajeAld-ongnd e pea
BuisnoH :z-s

we.boud ueyd dwo) pajeisp
au} aoueyud 3 Yim ubne saaneniul anAjele)
Juawajg JuawdojeAaq diwouod3,

POHIA &Mu u\mk\,%h%x% °

yopoadsz) B Hpr) o

dep 9 Auojusau 18ssy/Apiadod spimAjuno)
diys.supied uonoeany Aisnpuj 1ebel
WINIHOSUOY 2IWouU023 Blogi)

‘AjUn07 ©10Q1) JO SBIIUNWWO0D PUB SUBZIID By}

10j sanjunjioddo o1wouo02s pue a4l jo Aynenb aaoadwi 03
s921A18S anlsuodsad pue Ayjenb-ybiy jo yuswabeuew pue
diysaspes) apinodd apy 'sasusdxs pue sanusaad 2ngnd jo
diyspaemais jualedsued) pue 9)gejunodde ‘8SIM 8INSUS 3\

2040,/ 219501 If o

seljoe.d SSauISNg 3)gRUIRISNS A)ejusLuuoIAug
20.J0p{lom pakoydwg

Ayunuwiwiod ayy ut juswisaaul ongnd pue ajealid pasealou|
sanjiunpioddo gof 1820) Ul Yymoug

Adisnpui g ssauisng maN

85B( JIWoU0ds pausyibualls

Spapingg w\m\ . &w%‘s\%\ PV e

‘Ainigeuieisns wuas)-buo) 4oy suoljepunoy
JILOU0J® pUB |BINIONJISEIUL ‘|BIDUBULY PIJOS 1]ING
sey jey) uoijeziuebio Ajuno) e10qI) aA1d844e
pue aAljeladood ‘paijiun B aARY 11IM 3M 'GZ0Z Ag

o) g U o

INNQOJ V10813

“‘ymodb qol pue
JUBWdO1BASP JILUOUODS 3)GRUIRISNS pUR MU 3jeiNWGg
Awouo33 ;-5

-SIMTVA ALNNOD




Resolution 22-29




RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS RELATING TO THE ADOPTION OF
RESOLUTION NO.
OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

CIBOLA COUNTY
New Mexico

MAY 26,2022

STATE OF NEW MEXICO )
) ss.
COUNTY OF CIBOLA )

The Board of County Commissioners (the "Governing Body") of Cibola County, New Mexico (the
"Grantee") met in a regular session in full conformity with the law and the rules and regulations
of the Governing Body at County Administration Building, Commission Chambers, 700 E
Roosevelt Avenue, Suite 50, Grants, New Mexico, being the meeting place of the Governing Body
for the meeting held on May 26, 2022 at the hour of 5:00 p.m. Upon roll call, the following
members and officers were found to be present:

Present:

Absent:

Also Present:

Thereupon, there was officially filed with the Clerk a copy of a proposed Resolution in
final form, as follows:



CIBOLA COUNTY
New Mexico

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-29

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A LOCAL
GOVERNMENT PLANNING GRANT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN
THE NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY (THE "NMFA"), AND CIBOLA
COUNTY, NEW MEXICO (THE "GRANTEE"), IN THE AMOUNT OF $50,000
EVIDENCING AN OBLIGATION OF THE GRANTEE TO UTILIZE THE
GRANT AMOUNT AND THE LOCAL MATCH AMOUNT, IF APPLICABLE,
SOLELY FOR THE PURPOSE OF FINANCING THE COSTS OF
COMPREHENSIVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PLAN WITH LEDA, AND
SOLELY IN THE MANNER DESCRIBED IN THE GRANT AGREEMENT;
CERTIFYING THAT THE GRANT AMOUNT, TOGETHER WITH THE
LOCAL MATCH, IF APPLICABLE, AND OTHER FUNDS AVAILABLE TO
THE GRANTEE, IS SUFFICIENT TO COMPLETE THE PROJECT;
APPROVING THE FORM OF AND OTHER DETAILS CONCERNING THE
GRANT AGREEMENT; RATIFYING ACTIONS HERETOFORE TAKEN;
REPEALING ALL ACTION INCONSISTENT WITH THIS RESOLUTION;
AND AUTHORIZING THE TAKING OF OTHER ACTIONS IN CONNECTION
WITH THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF THE GRANT AGREEMENT.

Capitalized terms used in the following preambles have the same meaning as defined in
Section 1 of the Resolution unless the context requires otherwise.

WHEREAS, the Grantee is a legally and regularly created, established, organized and
existing County, in good standing under the general laws of the State of New Mexico; and

WHEREAS, the Grantee is qualified to receive the Planning Grant pursuant to the NMFA’s
Rules Governing the Local Government Planning Fund and NMSA 1978, §6-21-6.4, as amended;
and

WHEREAS, the Governing Body hereby determines that the Project may be financed with
amounts granted pursuant to the Grant Agreement, that the Grant Amount, together with the Local
Match, if applicable, and other moneys available to the Grantee, is sufficient to complete the
Project, and that it is in the best interest of the Grantee and the public it serves that the Grant
Agreement be executed and delivered and that the funding of the Project take place by executing
and delivering the Grant Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Governing Body has determined that it may lawfully enter into the Grant
Agreement, accept the Grant Amount and be bound to the obligations and by the restrictions
thereunder; and

WHEREAS, the Grantee acknowledges and understands that the Planning Grant must be

expended and a Planning Document must be completed within one (1) year from the Closing Date,

Planning Grant Resolution, LGPF No. PG-5470 2
Cibola County



or the Grantee will forfeit the ability to draw Grant funds from the Local Government Planning
Fund; and

WHEREAS, the Grant Agreement shall not constitute a general obligation of the Grantee
or a debt of pledge of the faith and credit of the Grantee, the NMFA or the State; and

WHEREAS, there have been presented to the Governing Body and there presently are on
file with the Clerk this Resolution and the form of the Grant Agreement which is incorporated by
reference and made a part hereof; and

WHEREAS, all required authorizations, consents and approvals in connection with (i) the
use of the Grant Amount for the purposes described and according to the restrictions set forth in
the Grant Agreement; and (ii) the authorization, execution and delivery of the Grant Agreement
which are required to have been obtained by the date of this Resolution, have been obtained or are
reasonably expected to be obtained.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS OF CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO:

Section 1. Definitions. All terms used herein have the same definition as contained in
the draft Grant Agreement, dated June 3, 2022.

Section 2. Ratification. ~All action heretofore taken (not inconsistent with the
provisions of this Resolution) by the Grantee and officers of the Grantee, directed toward the
Project and the execution and delivery of the Grant Agreement, shall be and the same hereby is
ratified, approved and confirmed.

Section 3. Authorization of the Project and the Grant Agreement. The Project and the
method of funding the Project through execution and delivery of the Grant Agreement are hereby
authorized and ordered. The Project is for the benefit and use of the Grantee and the public it
serves.

Section 4. Findings. The Governing Body on behalf of the Grantee hereby declares
that it has considered all relevant information and data and hereby makes the following findings:

A. The Project is needed for a Comprehensive Economic Development Plan
With LEDA to fund an economic development plan that will assist the County in planning
activities to aid in economic recovery after the closure of regional employers and economic
impacts brought on by the COVID-19 pandemic. The plan will include the following:
Comprehensive Economic Development Planning, Update Target Industry Analysis, Update
LEDA Ordinances and required documentation, and perform Strategic Planning with County Staff.

B. The costs of the Project are beyond the local control and resources of the
Grantee.

Planning Grant Resolution, LGPF No. PG-5470 3
Cibola County



C. The Project and the execution and delivery of the Grant Agreement pursuant
to the Act to provide funds for the financing of the Project are in the interest of the public health,
safety and welfare of the public served by the Grantee.

D. The Grantee will perform (or cause to be performed) the Project with the
proceeds of the Planning Grant and will utilize the Project for the purposes set forth in the Grant
Agreement.

E. The Grantee will forfeit the Planning Grant if the Grantee fails to utilize the
Grant Amount within one (1) year of the Closing Date.

F. The Local Match, if any, is legally available to be applied to the Project in
the amount of $0.

Section 5. Grant Agreement—Authorization and Detail.

A. Authorization. This Resolution has been adopted by the affirmative vote of
either a majority of a quorum of the Governing Body or of all members. For the purpose of
protecting the public health, conserving the property, and protecting the general welfare and
prosperity of the public served by the Grantee and by the other qualifying entities involved in the
Project, if any, and performing the Project, it is hereby declared necessary that the Grantee execute
and deliver the Grant Agreement evidencing the Grantee’s acceptance of the Grant Amount of
$50,000 and the availability of the Local Match or other funds, if applicable, to be utilized solely
for the Project and solely in the manner and according to the restrictions set forth in the Grant
Agreement, the execution and delivery of which are hereby authorized. The Grantee shall use the
proceeds of the Grant and the Local Match, if applicable, to finance the performance of the Project.
The Project will be owned by the Grantee and will be utilized by the Grantee as set forth in the
Grant Agreement.

B. Detail. The Grant Agreement shall be in substantially the form of the Grant
Agreement presented at the meeting of the Governing Body at which this Resolution was adopted.
The Grant shall be in the amount of Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000).

Section 6. Approval of Grant Agreement. The form of the Grant Agreement as
presented at the meeting of the Governing Body at which this Resolution was adopted is hereby
approved. Authorized Officers are hereby individually authorized to execute, acknowledge and
deliver the Grant Agreement with such changes, insertions, and deletions as may be approved by
such individual Authorized Officers, and the Clerk is hereby authorized to affix the seal of the
Grantee on the Grant Agreement and attest the same. The execution of the Grant Agreement shall
be conclusive evidence of such approval.

Section 7. Disposition of Proceeds; Completion of Acquisition of the Project.

A. Grant Account. The Grantee hereby consents to creation of the Grant
Account by the NMFA and approves of the deposit of the Grant Amount into the Grant Account.
Until the Completion Date, the money in the Grant Account shall be used and paid out solely for

Planning Grant Resolution, LGPF No. PG-5470 4
Cibola County



the purpose of the Project in compliance with applicable law and the provisions of the Grant
Agreement.

B. Completion of Acquisition of the Project. The Grantee shall proceed to
acquire and complete the Project with all due diligence. Upon the Completion Date, the Grantee
shall execute a certificate substantially in the form attached as Exhibit “C” to the Grant Agreement
stating that acquisition of and payment for the Project have been completed. As soon as practicable
and, in any event, not more than sixty (60) days after the Completion Date, any balance remaining
in the Grant Account shall be transferred and returned to the Local Government Planning Grant
Fund.

C. NMFA Not Responsible. The NMFA shall in no manner be responsible for

the application or disposal by the Grantee or by the officers of the Grantee of the funds derived

from the Grant Agreement or of any other funds held by or made available to the Grantee’s in
connection with use of the Project.

Section 8. Authorized Officers.  Authorized Officers are hereby individually
authorized and directed to execute and deliver any and all papers, instruments, opinions, affidavits
and other documents and to do and cause to be done any and all acts and things necessary or proper
for carrying out this Resolution, the Grant Agreement, and all other transactions contemplated
hereby and thereby. Authorized Officers are hereby individually authorized to do all acts and
things required of them by this Resolution and the Grant Agreement for the full, punctual and
complete performance of all the terms, covenants and agreements contained in this Resolution and
the Grant Agreement, including, but not limited to, the execution and delivery of closing
documents in connection with the execution and delivery of the Grant Agreement.

Section 9. Amendment of Resolution. This Resolution after its adoption may be
amended without receipt by the Grantee of any additional consideration, but only with the prior
written consent of the NMFA.

Section 10.  Resolution Irrepealable. After the Grant Agreement has been executed and
delivered, this Resolution shall be and remain irrepealable until all obligations of the Grantee under
the Grant Agreement shall be fully discharged, as herein provided.

Section 11.  Severability Clause. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this
Resolution shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or
unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the
remaining provisions of this Resolution. ’

Section 12.  Repealer Clause. All bylaws, orders, resolutions, ordinances, or parts
thereof, inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed to the extent only of such inconsistency. This
repealer shall not be construed to revive any bylaw, order, resolution or ordinance, or part thereof,
heretofore repealed.

Section 13.  Effective Date. Upon due adoption of this Resolution, it shall be recorded
in the book of the Grantee kept for that purpose, authenticated by the signatures of the Chairman

Planning Grant Resolution, LGPF No. PG-5470 5
Cibola County



Vice Chair and Clerk of the Grantee, and this Resolution shall be in full force and
effect thereafter, in accordance with law; provided, however, that if recording is not required
for the effectiveness of this Resolution, this Resolution shall be effective upon adoption
of this Resolution by the Governing Body. '

Section 14. Execution of Agreements. The Grantee through its Governing Body agrees
to authorize and execute all such agreements with the NMFA as are necessary to consummate the
Grant contemplated herein and consistent with the terms and conditions attached hereto.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS MAY 26, 2022.

CIBOLA COUNTY

By

Chair or Vice Chair

ATTEST:

Michelle E. Dominguez, Clerk

[Remainder of page intentionally lefi blank.]

Planning Grant Resolution, LGPF No. PG-5470 6
Cibola County



Governing Body Member then moved adoption

of the foregoing Resolution, duly seconded by Governing Body Member

The motion to adopt said Resolution, upon being put to a vote was passed and adopted on

the following recorded vote:

Those Voting Aye:

Those Voting Nay:

Those Absent:

( ) members of the Governing Body having voted in favor of said
motion, the Chairman declared said motion carried and said Resolution adopted, whereupon the
Chairman and the Clerk signed the Resolution upon the records of the minutes of the Governing
Body.

After consideration of matters not relating to the Resolution, the meeting on motion duly
made, seconded and carried, was adjourned.

[Signature page follows.]

Planning Grant Resolution, LGPF No. PG-5470 7
Cibola County



CIBOLA COUNTY
New Mexico

By
Chair or Vice Chair
By
Michelle E. Dominguez, Clerk
(SEAL)
[Remainder of page intentionally left blank.]
Planning Grant Resolution, LGPF No. PG-5470 8

Cibola County



STATE OF NEW MEXICO )
) ss.
COUNTY OF CIBOLA )

I, Michelle E. Dominguez, Clerk, the duly qualified and acting record-keeping officer of
Cibola County, New Mexico (the “Grantee™), do hereby certify:

1. The foregoing pages are a true, perfect, and complete copy of the record of the
proceedings of the Board of County Commissioners of Cibola County, New Mexico, constituting
the Governing Body of the Grantee, had and taken at a duly called regular meeting held at County
Administration Building, Commission Chambers, 700 E Roosevelt Avenue, Suite 50, Grants, New
Mexico, on May 26, 2022 at the hour of 5:00 p.m., insofar as the same relate to the adoption of
Resolution No. 2022-29 and the execution and delivery of the proposed Grant
Agreement, a copy of which is set forth in the official records of the proceedings of the Governing
Body kept in the offices of the Grantee. None of the action taken in the said proceedings has been
rescinded, repealed or modified.

2. Said proceedings were duly had and taken as therein shown, the meeting therein
was duly held, and the persons therein named were present at said meeting, as therein shown.

3. Notice of said meeting was given in compliance with the permitted methods of
giving notice of regular meetings of the Governing Body as required by the State Open Meetings
Act, NMSA 1978, §10-15-1, as amended, including, Grantee’s Open Meetings Resolution No. 22-
05, dated January 11, 2022, presently in effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this June 3,2022.

CIBOLA COUNTY
New Mexico
By
Michelle E. Dominguez, Clerk
(SEAL)
Planning Grant Resolution, LGPF No. PG-5470 9

Cibola County



EXHIBIT “A”

Notice of Meeting

Planning Grant Resolution, LGPF No. PG-5470 10
Cibola County



Certificate Of

Grantee




CIBOLA COUNTY
New Mexico
Planning Grant Agreement
New Mexico Finance Authority No. PG-5470
$50,000

STATE OF NEW MEXICO )
) ss. CERTIFICATE OF GRANTEE
COUNTY OF CIBOLA )

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED by the undersigned, the duly chosen, qualified and acting
Chairman and Clerk of the Board of County Commissioners of Cibola County (the “Grantee™),
State of New Mexico, that:

Capitalized terms used in this Certificate have the same meanings as defined in Resolution
No. 2022-29 adopted by the Governing Body of the Grantee on May 26, 2022 (the
“Resolution”) in connection with this Planning Grant, unless otherwise defined in this Certificate
or the context requires otherwise.

1. The Grantee is a legally and regularly created, established, organized and existing
County, in good standing under the laws of the State of New Mexico;

2. The resolutions, rules and regulations governing the Project and customer service
by the Grantee have been duly adopted and are now in full force and effect;

3. The Authorized Officers and Governing Body of the Grantee were duly and validly
elected or appointed and are empowered to act for the Grantee; and

4. The Grantee has all requisite corporate power:

(a) To perform or cause performance of the Project funded by the Planning
Grant and the Local Match, if applicable;

(b)  To execute and deliver Grant documents, including but not limited to those
identified above; and

(c) To perform all acts required by such Grant documents to be done by the
Grantee.

5. All proceedings of the Grantee, its elected and appointed officers, and employees,
required or necessary to be taken in connection with the authorization of the actions specified
above have been duly taken and all such authorizations are presently in full force and effect.

6. The Resolution and the Grant Agreement have been duly signed and adopted in
accordance with all applicable laws and neither has been repealed, rescinded, revoked, modified,



amended or supplemented in any manner except as set forth in the Resolution. The Resolution
constitutes valid and sufficient legal authority for the Grantee to carry out and enforce the
provisions of the Grant Agreement. '

7. No event will result from the execution and delivery of the Grant Agreement that
constitutes a default or an Event of Default under either the Grant Agreement or the Resolution,
and no Event of Default and no default under the Grant Agreement or the Resolution has occurred
and is continuing on the date of this Certificate.

8. The Grantee has duly authorized and approved the consummation by it of all
transactions, and has complied with all requirements and satisfied all conditions, which are
required by the Grant Agreement to have been authorized, approved, performed or consummated
by the Grantee at or prior to the date of this Certificate. The Grantee has full legal right, power
and authority to carry out and consummate the transactions contemplated by the Resolution and
the Grant Agreement.

9. All approvals, consents and orders of any governmental authority having
Jurisdiction in the matter which would constitute a condition precedent to the enforceability of the
Grant Agreement or any of the actions required to be taken by the Resolution or the Grant
Agreement to the date of this Certificate have been obtained and are in full force and effect.

10.  All approvals, consents and orders of any governmental authority having
Jurisdiction in the matter which would constitute a condition precedent to the completion of the
Project have been obtained and are in full force and effect.

11. Neither the Grantee’s adoption of the Resolution nor any action contemplated by
or pursuant to the Resolution or the Grant Agreement conflicts or will conflict with, or constitute
a breach by the Grantee of, or default by the Grantee under any law, court decree or order,
governmental regulation, rule or order, resolution, agreement, indenture, mortgage or other
instrument to which the Grantee is subject or by which it is bound.

12. There is no actual or threatened action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation
against the Grantee, at law or in equity, by or before any court, public board or body, nor to the
Grantee's knowledge is there any basis therefore, affecting the existence of the Grantee or the titles
of its officials to their respective offices, or in any way materially adversely affecting or
questioning (a) the territorial jurisdiction of the Grantee, (b) the use of the proceeds of the Grant
Agreement for the Project, (c) the validity or enforceability of the Grant Agreement or any
proceedings of the Grantee with respect to the Grant Agreement or the Resolution, (d) the
execution and delivery of the Grant Agreement or (e) the power of the Grantee to carry out the
transactions contemplated by the Grant Agreement or the Resolution.

13. As of the date of this Certificate, the following were and now are the duly chosen
qualified and acting officers and members of the Governing Body of the Grantee:

Chairman: Daniel Torrez
Members: Martha Garcia, 1st Vice Chair

Certificate of Grantee, LGPF No. PG-5470 2
Cibola County



Dr. Christine Lowery, 2nd Vice Chair
Ralph Lucero
Robert Windhorst

Clerk: Michelle E. Dominguez

14. " To the best of our knowledge and belief after due investigation, none of the Events
of Default referred to in Article IX of the Grant Agreement has occurred.

15.  The Grantee has complied with all the covenants and satisfied all the conditions on
its part to be performed or satisfied at or prior to the date hereof, and the representations and
warranties of the Grantee contained in the Grant Agreement and in the Resolution are true and
correct as of the date of this Certificate.

16.  To the best of our knowledge and belief after due investigation, neither the
Chairman, Clerk, any member or director of the Governing Body of the Grantee, nor any other
officer, employee or other agent of the Grantee is interested (except in the performance of his or
her official rights, privileges, powers and duties), directly or indirectly, in the profits of any
contract, or job for work, or services to be performed and appertaining to the Project.

17.  Regular meetings of the Grantee’s Governing Body and the meeting at which the
Resolution was adopted have been held at County Administration Building, Commission
Chambers, 700 E Roosevelt Avenue, Suite 50, Grants, New Mexico, the principal meeting place
of the Grantee.

18. The Grantee’s Governing Body has no rules of procedure which would invalidate
or make ineffective the Resolution or other action taken by the Grantee’s Governing Body in
connection with the Grant Agreement. The Open Meetings Act Resolution No. 22-05 (the “Open
Meetings Act Resolution™) adopted and approved by the Governing Body on January 11, 2022,
establishes notice standards as required by Section 10-15-1, NMSA 197 8, as amended and
supplemented. The Open Meetings Act Resolution has not been amended or repealed. All action
of the Governing Body with respect to the Grant Agreement and Resolution was taken at meetings
held in compliance with the Open Meetings Act Resolution then in effect.

19. The Chairman and Clerk, on the date of the signing of the Grant Agreement and on
the date of this Certificate, are the duly chosen, qualified and acting officers of the Grantee
authorized to execute the Grant Agreement.

20.  This Certificate is for the benefit of the New Mexico Finance Authority.

21.  This Certificate may be executed in counterparts.

[Signatures on following page.]

Certificate of Grantee, LGPF No. PG-5470 3
Cibola County



WITNESS our signatures and the seal of the Grantee this June 3, 2022.

CIBOLA COUNTY
By

Chair or Vice Chair
By

" Michelle E. Dominguez, Clerk

(SEAL)

Certificate of Grantee, LGPF No. PG-5470 4
Cibola County



Planning

Grant
Agreement




$50,000

PLANNING GRANT AGREEMENT

dated

June 3, 2022

by and between

NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY
and

CIBOLA COUNTY
New Mexico

PG-5470



PLANNING GRANT AGREEMENT

THIS PLANNING GRANT AGREEMENT (the “Grant agreement”), dated June 3, 2022,
is entered into by and between the NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY (the “NMFA”) and
Cibola County, New Mexico (the “Grantee”). :

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the NMFA is a public body politic and corporate, separate and apart from the
State of New Mexico (the “State”), constituting a governmental instrumentality, duly organized
and created under and pursuant to the laws of'the State, particularly NMSA 1978 §§6-21-1 through
6-21-31, as amended, (the “New Mexico Finance Authority Act”); and

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, §6-21-6.4, as amended, creates the Local Government Planning
Fund to be administered by the NMFA to make Grants to qualified entities to develop economic
development plans; and

WHEREAS, Grantee is a legally and regularly created, established, organized and existing
County, in good standing under the general laws of the State; and '

WHEREAS, the Grantee is qualified to receive the Planning Grant pursuant to the NMFA’s
Rules and NMSA 1978, §6-21-6.4, as amended; and

WHEREAS, the Grantee has applied to the NMFA for Planning Grant (as defined below)
funding and has determined that it is in the best interest of the Grantee and the public it serves that
the Grantee enter into this Grant Agreement with the NMFA and accept a grant in the amount of
. $50,000 from the NMFA to carry out the Project, as more fully described in Exhibit “A” attached
hereto; and

WHEREAS, the Grantee acknowledges and understands that the Planning Grant must be
expended and the Planning Documents must be completed within one (1) year from the Closing
Date, or the Grantee will. forfeit the ability to draw Grant funds from the Local Government
Planning Fund; and

WHEREAS, the Grantee is prepared to perform all its obligations and to observe and obey
all restrictions on the use of the Grant set forth in this Grant Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the foregoing premises and the mutual
promises and covenants contained herein, the parties hereto agree:

ARTICLE I: DEFINITIONS

As used in this Agreement, including the foregoing recitals, the following terms shall, for
all purposes, have the meanings herein specified, unless the context clearly requires otherwise

Planning Grant Agreement No. PG-5470 ‘ 1
Cibola County



(such meanings to be equally applicable to both the singular and the plural forms of the terms
defined):

“Agreement Term” means the term of this Grant Agreement as provided under
Article III of this Grant Agreement.

“Authorized Officers” means in the case of the Grantee the Chairman of the
Governing Body, and in the case of the NMFA the Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson and Secretary
of the Board of Directors and the Chief Executive Officer, or any other officer or employee of the
NMFA designated in writing by an Authorized Officer.

“Closing Date” means the date of execution, delivery and funding of this Grant
Agreement.

“Event of Default” means one or more events of default as defined in Article IX of
this Grant Agreement.

“NMFA” means the New Mexico Finance Authority.

“Force Majeure” means any act of God, fire, floods, storms, explosions, accidents,
epidemics, war, civil disorder, strikes, lockouts or other labor difficulties, or any law, rule,
regulation, order or other action adopted or taken by any federal, state or local government
authority, or any other cause not reasonably within such party’s control. '

“Governing Body” means the Board of County Commissioners of the Grantee, or
any future governing body of the Grantee.

“Grant or Grant Amount” means the sum of $50,000.
“Grant Account” means the account in the name of the Grantee established pursuant
to this Grant Agreement and held by the NMFA for deposit of the Grant Amount for disbursal to

the Grantee for payment of the costs of the Project.

“Grant Agreement” means this grant agreement and any amendments or
supplements hereto, including the Exhibits attached hereto.

“Grantee” means Cibola County, New Mexico.
“Herein,” “hereby,” “hereunder,” “hereof,” “hereinabove,” “hereafter”” and similar
words refer to this entire Grant Agreement and not solely to the particular section or paragraph of

this Grant Agreement in which such word is used.

“Local Government Planning Fund” means the fund of the same name created
pursuant to the Act and held and administered by the NMFA.

“Local Match” means $0.

Planning Grant Agreement No. PG-5470 2
Cibola County



“NMSA 1978” means the New Mexico Statutes Annotated, 1978 Compilation, as
amended and supplemented.

“Planning Document” means a written document in the form of a Comprehensive
Economic Development Plan With LEDA, created for the purpose of evaluating and estimating
the costs of alternatives to meet the Grantee’s public project needs.

“Planning Grant” or “Grant” means the amount provided to the Grantee pursuant
to the Grant Agreement for the purpose of funding the Project and is equal to the Grant Amount.

“Policy” or “Policies” means the New Mexico Finance Authority Local
Government Planning Fund Project Management Policies.

“Project” means the preparation of the Planning Document as more particularly
described in Exhibit “A” hereto. o

“Resolution” means the Grantee’s Resolution No. 2022-29 adopted  on
May 26, 2022, authorizing the Grantee’s acceptance of the terms and conditions of this Grant
Agreement.

“Rules” mean the Rules governing the Local Government Planning Fund as
adopted by the Board of Directors of the NMFA, as amended and supplemented from time to
time.

ARTICLE II: REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS

Section 2.1.  Representations, Warranties and Covenants of the Grantee. The Grantee
represents, warrants and covenants as follows:

(a)  Binding Nature of Covenants. All covenants, stipulations, obligations and
agreements of the Grantee contained in this Grant Agreement and the Resolution shall be deemed
to be the covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Grantee to the full extent
authorized or permitted by law, and such covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements shall
be binding upon the Grantee and its successors and upon any board or body to which any powers
or duties affecting such covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreement shall be transferred by
or in accordance with law. Except as otherwise provided in this Grant Agreement, all rights,
powers and privileges conferred and duties and liabilities imposed upon the Grantee by the
provisions of this Grant Agreement and the Resolution shall be exercised or performed by the
Grantee or by such residents, officers, or officials of the Grantee as may be required by law to
exercise such powers and to perform such duties.

(b)  Personal Liability. No covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement
contained in this Grant Agreement shall be deemed to be a covenant, stipulation, obligation or
agreement of any officer, agent or employee of the Grantee or member of the Governing Body in
his or her individual capacity, and neither the members of the Governing Body nor any officer

Planning Grant Agreement No. PG-5470 3
Cibola County



executing this Grant Agreement shall be liable personally on this Grant Agreement or be subject
to any personal liability or accountability by reason of the execution and delivery thereof.

(©) Authorization of Grant Agreement. The Grantee is a County duly
organized, existing and in good standing under the statutes and laws of the State. Pursuant to the
laws of the State, as amended and supplemented from time to time, the Grantee is authorized to
enter into the transactions contemplated by this Grant Agreement and to carry out its obligations
hereunder. The Grantee has duly authorized and approved the execution and delivery of this Grant
Agreement and the other documents related to the transaction.

(d) Use of Grant Agreement Proceeds. The Grantee shall apply the proceeds
of the Grant solely to the acquisition and completion of the Project, shall not use the Grant proceeds
for any other purpose, and shall comply with all applicable ordinances and regulations, if any, and
any and all applicable laws relating to the Project. The Grantee shall immediately apply all Grant
proceeds disbursed to it toward the Project. The Grantee shall use the Grant proceeds and complete
the Planning Document within one (1) year of the Closing Date or shall forfeit the full amount of
the Grant.

(e) Selection of Contractors. All contractors providing services or materials in
connection with the Project shall be selected in accordance with applicable provisions of the New
Mexico Procurement Code, NMSA 1978, §§ 13-1-28 through 13-1-199, as amended, or, if the
Grantee is not subject to the New Mexico Procurement Code, shall be selected in accordance with
a documented procurement process duly authorized and established pursuant to laws and
regulations applicable to the Grantee.

6] Completion of Project. The Project will consist of the preparation of the
Planning Document consisting of the Comprehensive Economic Development Plan With LEDA
to fund an economic development plan that will assist the County in planning activities to aid in
economic recovery after the closure of regional employers and economic impacts brought on by
the COVID-19 pandemic. The plan will include the following: Comprehensive Economic
Development Planning, Update Target Industry Analysis, Update LEDA Ordinances and required
documentation, and perform Strategic Planning with County Staff, and will be completed so as to
comply with all applicable ordinances and regulations, if any, and any and all applicable laws,
rules, and regulations of the State relating to the acquisition and completion of the Project and to
the use of the Grant proceeds. If requested by the NMFA, the Grantee will allow the Office of the
State Engineer, the New Mexico Environment Department, the New Mexico Economic
Development Department, or other appropriate agency of the State or the NMFA to assist with
completion of the Project and to review the Project as completed to assure compliance with
applicable laws, rules and regulations of the State. The completed Planning Document must be in
a form acceptable to and approved by the NMFA, in its sole discretion.

(8)  Necessity of Project. The completion of the Project under the terms and
conditions provided in this Grant Agreement is necessary, convenient and in furtherance of the
governmental purposes of the Grantee and is in the best interest of the Grantee and the public it
serves.

Planning Grant Agreement No. PG-5470 4
Cibola County



(h)  Legal. Valid and Binding Obligation. The Grantee has taken all required
action necessary to authorize the execution and delivery of this Grant Agreement and this Grant
Agreement constitutes a legal agreement of the Grantee enforceable in accordance with its terms.

6] Benefit to Grantee.  The Project will at all times be used for the purpose of
benefiting the Grantee and the public it serves as a whole.

()] Grant Amount Does Not Exceed Project Cost. The Grant Amount as
provided herein does not exceed the cost of the Project.

(k) No Breach or Default Caused by Grant Agreement. Neither the execution
and delivery of this Grant Agreement, nor the fulfillment of or compliance with the terms and
conditions in this Grant Agreement, nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated herein
conflicts with or results in a breach of any terms, conditions or provisions of, or any restrictions
contained in, any agreement or instrument to which the Grantee is a party or by which the Grantee
is bound or any laws, ordinances, governmental rules or regulations or court or other governmental
orders to which the Grantee or its properties are subject, or constitutes a default under any of the
foregoing.

) Irrevocability of Grant Agreement. The terms of this Grant Agreement shall
be irrevocable until the Project has been fully acquired and completed, and shall not be subject to
amendment or modification in any manner which would result in any use of the proceeds of this
Grant Agreement in a manner not permitted or contemplated by the terms hereof.

(m)  No Litigation. To the best knowledge of the Grantee, no litigation or
proceeding is pending or threatened against the Grantee or any other person affecting the right of
the Grantee to execute this Grant Agreement or to comply with its obligations under this Grant
Agreement. Neither the execution of this Grant Agreement by the Grantee nor compliance by the
Grantee with the obligations hereunder requires the approval of any regulatory body, or any other
entity, which approval has not been obtained or which is not reasonably expected to be obtained.

(n)  Occurrence of Event of Default. No event has occurred, and no condition
exists which, upon the execution and delivery of this Grant Agreement, would constitute an Event
of Default on the part of the Grantee hereunder.

(0) Grantee’s Existence. The Grantee will maintain its legal identity and
existence for the Agreement Term, unless another political subdivision by operation of law
succeeds to the liabilities, rights, and duties of the Grantee without adversely affecting to any
substantial degree the privileges and rights of the NMFA.

(P  Reports to NMFA. The Grantee shall report at least semi-annually to the
NMFA on the status of the Planning Document.

(@  Records. The Grantee shall properly maintain separate project accounts in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and conduct an annual audit or review
of the Grantee’s financial records related to the Project.

Planning Grant Agreement No. PG-5470 5
Cibola County



Section 2.2. Representations, Warranties and Covenants of the NMFA. The NMFA
represents, warrants and covenants as follows:

(a) The NMFA is a public body politic and corporate, separate and apart from
the State, constituting a governmental instrumentality duly organized, existing and in good
standing under the laws of the State, has all necessary power and authority to enter into and perform
and observe the covenants and agreements on its part contained in this Grant Agreement and, by
proper action, has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Grant Agreement.

(b)  This Agreement constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of the
NMFA enforceable in accordance with its terms.

ARTICLE III: AGREEMENT TERM

The Agreement Term shall commence on the Closing Date and shall terminate upon the
earliest of the following events: a determination by the NMFA that (a) the Grantee is unable to
proceed with the Project for the foreseeable future or has failed to commence the Project in a
reasonably timely manner, (b) the Grant or any portion thereof is not necessary for the Project (in
which case the Grant Amount may be modified by the NMFA)or (c) the Grantee has failed to
utilize the Planning Grant to complete the Planning Document within one year of the Closing Date.

ARTICLE IV: GRANT; APPLICATION OF MONEYS

On the Closing Date, the NMFA shall transfer the amount shown on Exhibit “A> into the
Grant Account to be disbursed by the NMFA pursuant to Section 6.2 of this Grant Agreement at
the direction of the Grantee, as needed by the Grantee to acquire and complete the Project.

ARTICLE V: GRANT TO THE GRANTEE

Section 5.1.  Grant to the Grantee. The NMFA hereby grants, and the Grantee hereby
accepts an amount equal to the Grant Amount. The NMFA shall establish and maintain, on behalf
of the Grantee, a Grant Account, which Grant Account shall be kept separate and apart from all
other accounts of the NMFA. The Grantee hereby pledges to the NMFA all its rights, title and
interest in the funds held in the Grant Account for the purpose of securing the Grantee’s obligations
under this Grant Agreement. Funds in the Grant Account shall be disbursed as provided in
Sections 6.2 and 6.3 hereof.

Section 5.2. No General Obligation. No provision of this Grant Agreement shall be
construed or interpreted as creating a general obligation or other indebtedness of the Grantee within
the meaning of any constitutional or statutory debt limitation.

Section 5.3.  Investment of Moneys in Grant Account. Money on deposit in the Grant
Account may be invested by the NMFA for the credit of the Local Government Planning Fund.

Planning Grant Agreement No. PG-5470 6
Cibola County



ARTICLE VI: THE PROJECT

Section 6.1. Agreement to Acquire and Complete the Project. . The Grantee hereby
agrees that in order to effectuate the purposes of this Grant Agreement and to acquire and complete
the Project it shall take such steps as are necessary and appropriate to acquire and complete the
Project lawfully, efficiently and within one (1) year of the Closing Date.

Section 6.2.  Disbursements from the Grant Account. So long as no Event of Default
shall occur, the NMFA shall disburse moneys from the Grant Account, either to the Grantee or to
vendors and contractors, as determined by the NMFA in its sole discretion, upon receipt by the
NMFA of a requisition substantially in the form of Exhibit “B” attached hereto signed by an
Authorized Officer of the Grantee, supported by certification by the Grantee’s project architect,
engineer, or other such authorized representative of the Grantee acceptable to the NMFA that the
amount of the disbursement request represents the progress of completion, acquisition or other
Project related activities accomplished as of the date of the disbursement request. The Grantee
shall provide such records or access to the Project as the NMFA, in its sole discretion, may request
in connection with the approval of the Grantee’s disbursement requests made hereunder. No
disbursement from the Grant Account may be made without receipt of evidence of the Local
Match, if applicable.

Section 6.3. Determination of Eligibility as condition Precedent to Disbursement. Prior
to the disbursement of the Grant Amount or any portion thereof, the NMFA shall have determined
that the Grantee has met the readiness to proceed requirements established for the Grant by the
NMFA and no Event of Default shall have occurred. No disbursement shall be made from the
Grant Account except upon a determination by the NMFA that such disbursement is for payment
of Project expenses, and that the disbursement does not exceed any limitation upon the amount
payable. .

Section 6.4. Reimbursement for Prior Expenditures. The NMFA, so long as no Event of
Default shall occur and upon presentation of the Grantee’s disbursement request with such
certification and records as are required in accordance with Section 6.2 hereof, may disburse
moneys from the Grant Account for reimbursement of Project expenses incurred after the NMFA
Board of Directors approved the grant on December 17, 2020.

Section 6.5. Completion of Disbursement of Grant Funds. Upon completion of
disbursement of the Grant Amount, an Authorized Officer of the Grantee shall deliver a certificate
of completion, substantially in the form attached to this Grant Agreement as Exhibit “C”, to the
NMFA stating that to the best of the Authorized Officer’s knowledge the Project has been
completed and the entire Grant Amount has been disbursed in accordance with the terms of this
Grant Agreement. If any portion of the Grant Amount remains upon the delivery of the certificate
of completion, the NMFA may, in its sole discretion, modify this Grant Agreement and reduce the
amount of the Grant. '

Planning Grant Agreement No. PG-5470 7
Cibola County



ARTICLE VII: COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND RULES;
OTHER COVENANTS

Section 7.1.  Further Assurances and Corrective Instruments. The NMFA and the
Grantee agree that they will, from time to time, execute, acknowledge and deliver, or cause to be
executed, acknowledged and delivered, such supplements hereto and such further instruments as
may reasonably be required for carrying out the terms and intention hereof.

Section 7.2. NMFA and Grantee Representatives. Whenever under the provisions of
this Grant Agreement the approval of the NMFA or the Grantee is required, or the Grantee or the
NMFA is required to take some action at the request of the other, such approval or such request
shall be given for the NMFA or for the Grantee by an Authorized Officer of the NMFA or the
Grantee, as the case may be, and any party hereto shall be authorized to act or rely on any such
approval or request. ~

Section 7.3.  Requirements of Law. During the Agreement Term, the Grantee shall
observe and comply promptly with all applicable federal, State and local laws and regulations
affecting the Project, and all current and future orders of all courts and agencies of the State having
Jurisdiction over the Project and matters related to the Project.

ARTICLE VIII: NON-LIABILITY OF NMFA FOR
ACTS OR OMISSIONS OF THE GRANTEE; INDEMNIFICATION

Section 8.1.  Non-Liability of NMFA. The NMFA shall not be liable in any manner for
the Project, Grantee’s use of the Grant, the ownership, operation or maintenance of the Project, or
any failure to act properly by the owner or operator of the Project.

Section 8.2.  Indemnification of NMFA. The NMFA shall not be responsible for any act
or omission of the Grantee upon which any claim, by or on behalf of any person, firm, corporation
or other legal entity may be made, whether arising from the establishment or modification of the
Project or otherwise. To the extent permitted by law, the Grantee shall and hereby agrees to
indemnify and save harmless the NMFA and its designee, if any, from all claims by or on behalf
of any person, firm, corporation or other legal entity arising from the acquisition and completion
of the Project. In the event of any action or proceeding brought on any such claim, upon notice
from the NMFA or its designee, Grantee shall defend the NMFA and its designee, if any, in any
such action or proceeding.

ARTICLE IX: EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section 9.1.  Events of Default Defined. Any one of the following shall be an Event of -
Default under this Agreement:

(@)  Use of the Grant Amount, or any portion thereof, by the Grantee for
purposes other than the Project;

Planning Grant Agreement No. PG-5470 8
Cibola County



(b)  Failure by the Grantee to utilize the Grant proceeds to complete the Project
within one (1) year of the Closing Date;

(c) Failure by the Grantee to observe and perform any other covenant, condition
or agreement on its part to be observed or performed under this Grant Agreement for a period of
thirty (30) days after written notice, specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied, is
given to the Grantee by the NMFA, unless the NMFA shall agree in writing to an extension of
such time prior to its expiration; provided, however, if the failure stated in the notice can be wholly
cured within a period of time not materially detrimental to the rights of the NMFA, but cannot be
cured within the applicable thirty (30) day period, the NMFA will not unreasonably withhold its
consent to an extension of such time if corrective action is instituted by the Grantee within the
applicable period and diligently pursued until the failure is corrected; and provided, further, that if
by reason of Force Majeure the Grantee is unable to carry out the agreements on its part herein
contained, the Grantee shall not be deemed in default under this paragraph during the continuance
of such inability (but Force Majeure shall not excuse any other Event of Default); or

(d)  Any warranty, representation or other statement by or on behalf of the
Grantee contained in this Grant Agreement or in any instrument furnished in compliance with or
in reference to this Grant Agreement is false or misleading in any material respect.

Section 9.2. Remedies on Default. Whenever any Event of Default has occurred and is
continuing, and subject to Section 9.3 hereof, the NMFA may take whatever of the following
actions may appear necessary or desirable to enforce performance of any agreement of the Grantee
in this Grant Agreement:

(@)  File a mandamus proceeding or other action or proceeding or suit at law or
in equity to compel the Grantee to perform or carry out its duties under the law and the agreements
and covenants required to be performed by it contained herein;

(b) Terminate this Grant Agreement;

(©) Cease disbursing any further amounts from the Grant Account;

(d)  Demand that the Grantee immediately repay the Grant Amount or any
portion thereof if such funds were not utilized in accordance with this Grant Agreement;

(e) File a suit in equity to enjoin any acts or things which are unlawful or violate
the rights of the NMFA; or

®) Take whatever other action at law or in equity may appear necessary or
desirable to enforce any other of its rights hereunder.

The Grantee shall be responsible for reimbursing the NMFA for any and all fees and costs incurred
in enforcing the terms of this Grant Agreement.

Planning Grant Agreement No. PG-5470 9
Cibola County



Section 9.3  Limitations on Remedies. A judgment requiring repayment of money
entered against the Grantee may reach any available funds of the Grantee to the extent permitted
by law.

Section 9.4. No Remedy Exclusive. No remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to the
NMFA is intended to be exclusive, and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in
addition to every other remedy given hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity.
No delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any default shall impair any
such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver thereof, but any such right and power may
be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient. In order to entitle the
NMFA to exercise any remedy reserved in this Article IX, it shall not be necessary to give any
notice, other than such notice as may be required in this Article IX.

Section 9.5. Waivers of Events of Default. The NMFA may in its sole discretion waive
any Event of Default hereunder and the consequences of such an Event of Default; provided,
however, all expenses of the NMFA in connection with such Event of Default shall have been paid
or provided for. Such waiver shall be effective only if made by written statement of waiver issued
by the NMFA. In case of any such waiver or rescission, or in case any proceeding taken by the
NMFA on account of any Event of Default shall have been discontinued or abandoned or
determined adversely, then the NMFA and the Grantee shall be restored to their former positions
and rights hereunder, respectively, but no such waiver or rescission shall extend to any subsequent
or other Event of Default, or impair any right consequent thereon.

Section 9.6. No_Additional Waiver Implied by One Waiver. In the event that any
agreement contained herein should be breached by either party and thereafter waived by the other
party, such waiver shall be in writing and limited to the particular breach so waived and shall not
be deemed to waive any other breach hereunder.

ARTICLE X: MISCELLANEOUS

Section 10.1. Notices. All notices, certificates or other communications hereunder shall
be sufficiently given and shall be deemed given when delivered as follows:

If to the Grantee, then to:

Cibola County

Attn: Chairman or County Clerk
700 E Roosevelt Ave Ste 50
Grants NM 87020

And if to the NMFA, then to:

New Mexico Finance Authority
Attn: Chief Executive Officer
207 Shelby Street

Santa Fe, New Mexico 87501

Planning Grant Agreement No. PG-5470 10
Cibola County



The Grantee and the NMFA may, by written notice given hereunder, designate any further or
different addresses to which subsequent notices, certificates or other communications shall be sent.

Section 10.2. Binding Effect. This Grant Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall
be binding upon the NMFA, the Grantee and their respective successors and assigns, if any.

Section 10.3. Amendments. This Grant Agreement may be amended only with the
written consent of the NMFA and the Grantee.

Section 10.4. No Liability of Individual Officers, Directors or Trustees. No recourse
under or upon any obligation, covenant or agreement contained in this Grant Agreement shall be
had against any member, employee, director or officer, as such, past, present or future, of the
NMFA, or against any officer, employee, director or member of the Grantee, past, present or
future, as an individual so long as such individual was acting in good faith and within the scope of
his or her duties. Any and all personal liability of every nature, whether at common law or in
equity, or by statute or by constitution or otherwise, of any such officer, employee, director or
member of the Grantee or of the NMFA is hereby expressly waived and released by the Grantee
and by the NMFA as a condition of and in consideration for the execution of this Agreement.

Section 10.5. Grantee Compliance. The NMFA shall not be responsible for assuring the
Grantee’s use of the Grant Amount or the Project for its intended purpose and shall have no
obligation to monitor compliance by the Grantee with the provisions of this Grant Agreement.

Section 10.6. Severability. In the event that any provision of this Grant Agreement shall
be held invalid or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not
invalidate or render unenforceable any other provision hereof.

Section 10.7. Execution in Counterparts. This Grant Agreement may be simultaneously
executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute
but one and the same instrument.

Section 10.8. Applicable Law. This Grant Agreement shall be governed by and construed
in accordance with the laws of the State.

Section 10.9. Captions. The captions or headings herein are for convenience only and in
no way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provisions or sections of this Grant
Agreement.

[Remainder of page intehtionally left blank.]

[Signatures on following page.]

Planning Grant Agreement No. PG-5470 11
Cibola County



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the NMFA, on behalf of itself, and as authorized by the NMFA
Board of Directors on December 17, 2020, has executed this Grant Agreement in its corporate
name with its corporate seal hereunto affixed and attested by its duly Authorized Officers; and the
Grantee has caused this Grant Agreement to be executed in its corporate name and the seal of the

Grantee affixed and attested by its duly Authorized Officers. All of the above are effective as of
the date first above written.

NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

By

Marquita D. Russel, Chief Executive Officer

Approved for Execution by Officers of the
New Mexico Finance Authority:

By

Daniel C. Opperman, Chief Legal Officer

CIBOLA COUNTY
By
Chair or Vice Chair

[SEAL]

ATTEST:

By

Michelle E. Dominguez, Clerk
Planning Grant Agreement No. PG-5470 12

Cibola County



Grantee:

Project Description:

Total Grant Amount:

Local Match:

Closing Date:

Planning Grant Agreement No. PG-5470
Cibola County

EXHIBIT “A”

TERM SHEET

Cibola County, New Mexico

Preparation of a Planning Document consisting of a
Comprehensive Economic Development Plan With LEDA
to fund an economic development plan that will assist the
County in planning activities to aid in economic recovery
after the closure of regional employers and economic
impacts brought on by the COVID-19 pandemic. The plan
will include the following: Comprehensive Economic
Development Planning, Update Target Industry Analysis,
Update LEDA Ordinances and required documentation, and
perform Strategic Planning with County Staff.

$50,000
$0

June 3, 2022



EXHIBIT “B”
FORM OF REQUISITION

RE:  $50,000 Planning Grant Agreement (the “Grant Agreement”) by and between the New
Mexico Finance Authority (“NMFA”) and Cibola County, New Mexico (“Grantee™),
NMFA Grant Number PG-5470 (the “Grant Agreement”).

Closing Date: June 3, 2022
TO:  NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

You are hereby authorized to disburse funds from the Grant Account, with regard to the above-
referenced Grant Agreement, the following:

| REQUISITION NUMBER:
PAYMENT AMOUNT: $
NAME AND ADDRESS OF PAYEE:

PURPOSE OF PAYMENT:

WIRING INFORMATION

BANK NAME:
ACCOUNT NUMBER:
ROUTING NUMBER:

Each obligation, item of cost or expense mentioned herein is for the Grant made by the New
Mexico Finance Authority pursuant to the Grant Agreement to the Grantee, within the State of
New Mexico, is due and payable, has not been the subject of any previous requisition and is a
proper charge against the Grant Account held on behalf of the Grantee. All representations
contained in the Grant Agreement and the related closing documents remain true and correct and
the Grantee is not in breach of any of the covenants contained therein.

Capitalized terms used herein are used as defined or as used in the Grant Agreement.

DATED: | By:
Authorized Officer of the Grantee
Print Name:
Title:

Planning Grant Agreement No. PG-5470
Cibola County



EXHIBIT “C”

FORM OF CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION

RE:  $50,000 Planning Grant Agreement (the “Grant Agreement”) by and between the New
Mexico Finance Authority (“NMFA”) and Cibola County, New Mexico (“Grantee”),
NMFA Grant Number PG-5470 (the “Grant Agreement”).

Closing Date: June 3, 2022
TO: NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

L the of
[Name] [Title or position]

the Grantee, hereby certify as follows:

1. The project described in the Grant Agreement (the “Project”) was completed and
placed in service by the Grantee on ,20_

2. The total cost of the Project was $

3. The Project was completed and is and shall be used consistent with and subject to

the covenants set forth in the Grant Agreement.

Cibola County

By:

Its:

Planning Grant Agreement No. PG-5470
Cibola County



Ordinance

2022-002

County Maintained Road Ordinance-Documents
in item 10a.




Ordinance

2022-003

Restricting Open and Controlled Burns in the
Unincorporated Areas of Cibola County
Documents in item 10b.




Resolution 22-27

PERA Municipal Plan #2




BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
RESOLUTION 22-27

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CIBOLA COUNTY TO PICK-UP FORTY-EIGHT
POINT ZERO SEVEN PERCENT OF THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT
ASSOCIATION OF NEW MEXICO (PERA) MUNICIPAL PLAN #2 MEMBER
CONTRIBUTIONS IN EFFECT JULY 10, 2022

WHEREAS, the Cibola County Board of Commissioners met upon notice of its regular
meeting duly published at the Cibola County Administration Building, 700 East
Roosevelt Ave., Suite 50, Grants, NM 87020, on , 2022, at 5:00 p.m. as
required by law; and,

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 10-11-5, authorizes affiliated public employers to be
responsible for making contributions of up to forty-eight-point zero seven percent
(48.07%) of its employees’ member contributions to PERA under certain conditions:
and,

WHEREAS, NMSA Section 10-11-5(B)(2) allows the employer to elect to be responsible
for a percentage of any increase to the statutory employee contribution rate in effect
after the passing of an earlier resolution; and,

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Cibola County desires to pick-up
forty-eight-point zero seven percent (48.07%) of employee contributions for employees
covered under Municipal Plan #2. After the pick-up of member contributions, the
employee contribution percentage would be 5.36% of salary and the employer pick-up
of employee contributions would be 16.09% of the employees’ salary under this
Resolution; and,

WHEREAS, pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 10-11-5, this Resolution is irrevocable
and shall apply to all employees within the Cibola County Municipal Plan #2.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that Cibola County, pursuant to NMSA 1978,
Section 10-11-5 hereby elects to be responsible for making contributions of forty-eight-
point zero seven percent (48.07%) of employees’ total member contributions to the
Public Employees Retirement Association for the Cibola County Municipal Plan #2 in
effect July 10, 2022.

Page 1 of 2



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Cibola County, pursuant to
NMSA 1978, Section 10-11-5(B)(2) elects to be responsible for a percentage of any

increase to the statutory employee contribution rate in effect after the passing of this
Resolution.

APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this day of 2022.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Daniel Torrez, Chairperson

Martha Garcia, First Vice Chairperson

Christine Lowery, Second Vice Chairperson

Robert Windhorst, Cqmmissioner

Ralph Lucero, Commissioner

ATTEST:

Michelle E. Dominguez
Cibola County Clerk

Page 2 of 2



Resolution 22-28

PERA Municipal Police Plan #5




BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
RESOLUTION 22-28

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CIBOLA COUNTY TO PICK-UP FIFTY-ONE
POINT EIGHTY-SIX PERCENT OF THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT
ASSOCIATION OF NEW MEXICO (PERA) MUNICIPAL POLICE PLAN #5
MEMBER CONTRIBUTIONS IN EFFECT JULY 10, 2022

WHEREAS, the Cibola County Board of Commissioners met upon notice of its regular
meeting duly published at the Cibola County Administration Building, 700 East
Roosevelt Ave., Suite 50, Grants, NM 87020, on , 2022, at 5:00 p.m. as
required by law; and,

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 10-11-5, authorizes affiliated public employers to be
responsible for making contributions of up to fifty-one-point eighty-six percent (51.86%)
of its employees’ member contributions to PERA under certain conditions; and,

WHEREAS, NMSA Section 10-11-5(B)(2) allows the employer to elect to be responsible
for a percentage of any increase to the statutory employee contribution rate in effect
after the passing of an earlier resolution; and,

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Cibola County desires to pick-up
fifty-one-point eighty-six percent (51.86%) of employee contributions for employees
covered under Municipal Police Plan #5. After the pick-up of member contributions, the
employee contribution percentage would be 9.49% of salary and the employer pick-up
of employee contributions would be 28.46% of the employees’ salary under this
Resolution; and,

WHEREAS, pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 10-11-5, this Resolution is irrevocable
and shall apply to all employees within the Cibola County Municipal Police Plan #5.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that Cibola County, pursuant to NMSA 1978,
Section 10-11-5 hereby elects to be responsible for making contributions of fifty-one-
point eighty-six percent (51.86%) of employees’ total member contributions to the
Public Employees Retirement Association for the Cibola County Municipal Police Plan
#5 in effect July 10, 2022.

Page 1 of 2



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that Cibola County, pursuant to
NMSA 1978, Section 10-11-5(B)(2) elects to be responsible for a percentage of any
increase to the statutory employee contribution rate in effect after the passing of this
Resolution.

APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this day of 2022.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Daniel Torrez, Chairperson

Martha Garcia, First Vice Chairperson

Christine Lowery, Second Vice Chairperson

Robert Windhorst, Commissioner

Ralph Lucero, Commissioner

ATTEST:

Michelle E. Dominguez
Cibola County Clerk

Page 2 of 2



Resolution 22-30

Budget Adjustment Number 7

No Backup Documentation At This Time




Resolution 22-32

FY23 Interim Budget

No Backup Documentation At This Time




E.S.A. Contract

G.C. For Public Safety Building Project

No Backup Documentation At This Time




Inmate Housing

Contract

|IGA Between Cibola County and Catron




INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT
BETWEEN CIBOLA COUNTY
AND CATRON COUNTY FOR THE HOUSING OF INMATES

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between the Board of County
Commissioners of Cibola County, hereinafter referred to as “Cibola", and the Board of County
Commissioners of Catron County, hereinafter referred to as “Catron,” both political subdivisions
of the State of New Mexico.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 3-18-1 (1972) provides that municipalities, and also counties
pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 4-37-1 (1995), have the power to “protect generally the
property of its municipality and its inhabitants” and to “preserve peace and order.” and:

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 4-38-18 (1876) provides that the Board of County
Commissioners has the power to represent the county and have the care of the county property
and the management of the interest of the county in all cases where no other provision is made
by law, and;

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 33-3-1 (1984) provides that common jails shall be under the
control of the respective sheriffs, independent contractors or jail administrators hired by the
board of county commissioners or other local public body or combination thereof, and the same
shall be used as prisons in the respective counties; and that contracts between local public bodies
and private independent contractors for the operation, or provision and operation, of a jail are
specifically authorized, and;

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 33-3-2 (1989) provides that a county may enter into an
agreement with other counties and municipalities to provide for the construction, maintenance or
operation of one or more jails or correctional or detention facilities for confinement of persons
charged with crimes, violations of municipal or county ordinances or committed to jail, and;

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 33-3-13 (1983) provides that all persons charged with crime
committed in the state, while awaiting indictment or trial on such charge, shall be incarcerated in
the county jail of the county wherein such crime is alleged to have been committed or any
facility operated by agreement between such counties or municipalities. An individual may also
be incarcerated in a jail not in the County where the underlying offense was committed if the
outside jail is being used for temporary places of confinement or if the Sheriff or Jail

Page 1 of 8



administrator determine that the life of the individual is in imminent danger in the proper county

jail; and,

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 13-1-98(A) (2013) specifically exempts from the
procurement code the “procurement of items of tangible personal property or services by a state
agency or a local public body from a state agency, a local public body or external procurement
unit except as otherwise provided in Sections 13-1-135 through 13-1-137 NMSA 1978.”

NOW THEREFORE the parties hereby agree as follows:

AGREEMENT

A. Scope of Responsibilities

1.

County Inmate. Cibola agrees to confine and house individuals, who are over the
age of eighteen (18), arrested for violation of the law in Catron County, or who are
sentenced to detention or confinement by the Catron County Magistrate or District
Courts, subject to the terms and restrictions of this Agreement, at the Detention
Center where Cibola County houses inmates (“Facility”). Cibola will not confine
potential inmates referred for “detox” or any form of “protective custody”.

Acceptance of Catron County Inmates. The admission to the Facility of a Catron
County inmate is dependent upon:

i. Cibola will be responsible for the care, custody, and control of inmates
after such time that the inmates are delivered and accepted to the Facility’s
custody, along with the necessary paperwork;

ii. Available Space; and,
iii. Full Compliance with Section A (4) of this Agreement.

Standards of Care. It shall be the responsibility of Cibola, through its current jail
contractor to confine and supervise Catron County’s inmates at the Facility. Cibola,
through its contractor, shall provide to such inmates care, including the furnishing of
three meals per day; to provide for their physical needs; to retain them in safe,
supervised custody; to maintain proper discipline and control; to make certain that
sentences and orders of the presiding courts are effectively managed and executed;
and otherwise to comply with applicable law; including the standards, policies, and
procedures applicable to the operations of the Facility and the American Correctional
Association standards common to jails.

Medical Services.

a. Catron County will furnish to the Facility a Health Status Transfer Form. The
Facility will not accept Catron County inmates if they do not clear the Facility’s
initial medical assessment. It is the responsibility of Catron County to transport
and obtain medical or psychological treatment for those persons in the custody of
Catron County who have not been accepted by the Facility.

Page 2 of 8



b. Catron County will be responsible for authorized on and off-site medical expenses
incurred, and will reimburse the Cibola for expenses upon invoice.

c. Catron County will be responsible for on and off-site emergency medical
expenses incurred, and will reimburse Cibola for expenses upon invoice.

d. Notification for emergency situations will be made by the Facility as soon as
possible by means of an ER/Hospitalization Reporting Form.

e. Cibola will contact the Catron County Magistrate Judge for non-emergency,
medical attention by using an Off-Site Healthcare Referral Form.

5. Transportation

Catron County will be responsible for:

i.
ii.
iii.
iv.

Transporting inmates to the Facility;

Returning inmates who are not accepted into the Facility;
Transporting its inmates/detainees to Court; and,

Returning inmates/detainees who are released back to Catron County.

6. Prison Rape Elimination Act of 2003

The Facility agrees to provide all inmates with a safe and secure environment free

from the threat of any sexual misconduct to include sexual harassment, sexual assault

9

or sexual abuse. The Facility has zero tolerance of all forms of sexual misconduct
between inmates, staff, contractors, volunteers, and other inmates, and complies with
the Prison Rape Elimination Act of 2003 for prevention, detention, reporting, and
treatment of victims of sexual misconduct.

B. Compensation

a. Catron agrees to pay Cibola at the rate of seventy-one dollars ($71.00) per day per

inmate.

1.
11.
iii.

iv.

V.

Vi.

A day shall refer to a calendar day of twenty-four (24) hours measured
from midnight.

A partial day will be considered a full day.

Medical services may be billed separately.

Catron agrees to pay Cibola within thirty (30) days of receipt of
monthly invoice.

Any charges billed to Catron, not belonging to Catron, may be
deducted from invoice or credit given on the next billing period. A
refund will be made if there is no subsequent billing period.

If an inmate is incarcerated by order of more than one Court or
detained on more than one jurisdiction’s criminal charges, the cost of
detaining that inmate shall be prorated among the respective
responsible jurisdictions.

Page 3 of 8



C. Inspection

a. InPerson. Periodic inspections may be conducted of the Facility by Catron personnel by
scheduling with the Facility.

b. Audits. Upon at least five (5) business days written notice and during normal business
hours, there shall be made available to Catron or examination all of Cibola’s records with
respect to the areas covered by this Agreement. Cibola shall permit Catron to audit,
examine, and make excerpts or transcripts from such records relating to Catron’s inmates
and this Agreement.

c. Records. Records shall be maintained by Cibola in accordance with applicable law and
matters covered by this Agreement in the areas of housing, medical, and payments received.
Records shall be maintained for a period required by federal, state, and local regulations and
laws. Catron County agrees to be responsible, to the extent of its negligence, for any and all
losses, liabilities, judgments, awards and costs arising out of or related to any claim in
whole or part that Catron failed to disclose any inmate information in violation of the
Freedom of Information Act or the Inspection of Public Records Act.

D. Term and Termination

This Agreement will become effective upon approval both parties. The term of this Agreement
is for one (1) year from the date the last party approved this Agreement (the “effective date™).
This Agreement will automatically renew each year for an additional year up to a total of four (4)
years unless either party gives written notice of its intent to terminate the Agreement. This
Agreement may be terminated by either of the parties hereto upon written notice delivered to the
other party at least thirty (30) days prior to the intended date of termination. In addition, the
County will give Catron County thirty (30) days notice of any change in rates. If the change is
not accepted, this Agreement may be terminated upon the 30" day of such notice. By such
termination, neither party may nullify obligations already incurred for performance or failure to
perform prior to the date of termination. Termination will only become effective when Catron
removes its last inmate from the Facility and compensates Cibola for all amounts due and
owning under this Agreement.

E. Property/Surplus Funds/Strict Accountability/Lead Agency

a. Property. No property shall be acquired as a result of this Agreement that does
not involve the disposition, division, or distribution of any property. The
disposition of records generated by performance of this Agreement shall be
decided by the parties upon termination.

b. Surplus Funds. There will be no surplus money as a result of this Agreement as
the fees billed by Cibola are for services rendered to Catron and the fees
received by Cibola will be transferred to the Cibola general fund as required by
law.

Page 4 of 8



Strict Accountability. Each party shall be strictly accountable for all receipts
and disbursements under this Agreement.

Lead Agency. Cibola is designated as the lead agency and shall monitor the
actions of Catron as they pertain to this Agreement and may take corrective
action or terminate this Agreement in the event that, following the receipt of
written notice from Cibola to Catron that Catron is in breach of its payment
obligations under the Agreement, Catron fails to make payment within thirty
(30) days after receipt of such notice. Catron and Cibola shall report and/or
confer with one another upon specific requests.

F. Agreement and Amendment

a.

This Agreement contains the entire Agreement of the parties and supersedes any and
all other agreements or understandings, oral or written, whether previous to the
execution hereof or contemporaneous herewith.

This Agreement shall not be altered, changed, or amended except by instrument in
writing executed by the parties.

Requested changes in the Services to be performed, including any increase or
decrease in the amount of Cibola’s compensation, which are mutually agreed upon by
and between the parties, shall be incorporated in written amendment(s) to this
Agreement.

All prior written agreements between the parties for the housing of inmates are
repealed with the approval of this Agreement.

If any part of this Agreement is held to be invalid or unenforceable, such holding will
not affect the validity or enforceability of any other part of this Agreement as long as
the remainder of the Agreement is reasonable capable of completion.

Services covered by this Agreement may be subcontracted, and the subcontractor
shall be subject to adhere to each applicable provision of this Agreement.

Neither party shall assign any interest in this Agreement, nor shall it transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party hereto.

G. Governing Law

a.

b.

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of New Mexico.

In the event of litigation, venue shall be in the Thirteenth Judicial District Court,
Cibola County.

H. Liability

Page 5 of 8



Each party shall be solely responsible for fiscal or other sanctions occasioned as a result of its
own violation or alleged violation requirements applicable to the performance of this Agreement.
Cibola and Catron shall be liable for their own actions according to this Agreement subject to the
immunities and limitations of the New Mexico Tort Claims Act, Sections 41-4-1, et. seq., NMSA
1978, as amended and subject to Cibola’s contract with the Facility. Neither party shall be
responsible for liability incurred as a result of the other party’s acts or omissions in connection
with this Agreement. Any liability incurred by either party in connection with this Agreement is
subject to the immunities and limitations of the New Mexico Tort Claims Act, Sections 41-4-1,
et. seq., NMSA 1978 as amended.

I. Independent Contractor

Neither Cibola County, the Facility, or their employees are considered to be employees of Catron
County for any purpose whatsoever. Cibola is considered an Independent Contractor at all times
in the performance described herein.

J. Appropriations

Notwithstanding any other provisions in this Agreement, the terms of this Agreement are
contingent upon Catron making the appropriations necessary for the performance of this
Agreement.

K. Notices

Any notice required to be given to either party by this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be
delivered in person, by courier service or by U.S. mail, either first class or certified, return
receipt requested, postage prepaid, as follows:

To Cibola County: Kate Fletcher, County Manager, 700 East Roosevelt Ave. Ste. 50, Grants,
NM 87020

To Catron County: Janet Porter Carrejo, County Manager, 100 Main Street, Reserve, NM
87830

Page 6 of 8



BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CIBOLA COUNTY

APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this 26" day of May 2022.

Daniel Torrez, Chair

Martha Garcia, 1% Vice-Commissioner

Christine Lowery, 2™ Vice-Chair

Robert Windhorst, Commissioner

Ralph Lucero, Commissioner

ATTEST:

Michelle E. Dominguez
Cibola County Clerk

Page 7 of 8



APPROVAL OF CATRON COUNTY

APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED by the Catron County on this day of
2022.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS,
CATRON COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

By:
Anita A. Hand, Chair
(SEAL)
ATTEST:
By:
Sharon Armijo, County Clerk
STATE OF NEW MEXICO )
)
COUNTY OF CATRON )
This instrument was acknowledged before me on this day of , 2022, by

Anita A. Hand, as Chair of the Board of County Commissioners, Catron County, New Mexico.

(NOTARY SEAL)

Notary Public

My Commission Expires:

Page 8 of 8



Requisitions Over

$20,000

GM Emulsions/Chip Seal/Road Dept.
S$527,380.67




REQUISITION ORDER

'y DATE : DEPARTMENT: QUOTE OBTAINED BY:
LA, Road

W April 7, 2022

b P QUOTE #1 QUOTE #2 QUOTE #3

o x VENDOR NAME:|GM Emulsions

o CONTACY NAME:|Gabriel Martinez/Fred Marquez
PHONE:{505-471-9981
FAX:

NQ. DESCRIPTION UNIT COST EXTENSION UNIT COST EXTENSION UNIT COST | EXTENSION
6 |Mobilization 5000.00 30,000.00 -
1 |{Mobilization 4000.00 4,000.00
2 |Traffic Control Management 1500.00 3,000.00
1 |Traffic Control Management 2000.00 2,000.00
2 |Traffic Control Management 2500.00 5,000.00
2 |Traffic Control Management 3000.00 6,000.00

##tn#t| Crack Seal & Fog Seal per SF (474,672 sq. ft.) 0.20 94,934.40
#i#th## | Single Penetration Chip Seal {52,741 sq ft) 6.50 342,816.50
1 {Tax(8.125%) 39629.77 39,629.77
Road Dept. 2021/2022 Co-op's
(CAP) Contract # D18958 Control # L600198
(SB) Contract # D18960 Control # L600201
(SP)Contract # D18958 Control # L600191
AT
“ L4 Q "J
o A - . -
\n f._er \‘ \\@
(S VW (\ 3 N
)
SUBTOTAL FOR SELECTED ITEMS 527,380.67 - -
TOTAL LABOR/ SERVICE COSTS - -
TOTAL GROSS RECEIPTS TAX - -
TOTAL SHIPPING/ FREIGHT COSTS - - 5
GRAND TOTAL 527,380.67 - -
REASON SELECTED STATE CONTRACT <:
VENDOR GM Emulsion
CONTRACT/BID/RFP # 00-805-19-16787
ADDRESS 5935 Agua Fria ESTIMATED DELIVERY
Santa Fe, NM 87507 PURCHASE ORDER #
CERTIFICATION FUND NAME & LINE ITEM # AMOUNTY
AGENT
With my signature, | hereby certify that all 0 402-014-416-00079 $ 527,380.67
goods/services requested are necessary to ob d the ko 0
properly conduct the operations of this l 0
department, and that all procurement has |
\ been conducted according to purchasing
' policies approved by the Cibola County DEPARTMENT HEAD SIGNAYURE DESIGNEE SIGNATURE, FINANCE SIGNATURE
Board of Commissioners. e e . J Z. /

U U Of R 0 O

0 0




A

— v
; 4 EMULSION
L pmernnas
Name / Address Esti m ate Date Estimate #
Cibola County 2/14/2022 C-51BBettyD
Audrey Archunde
Project
Cibola County Various Roads 20...
item Description Qty Rate UM Total

C-51B, Betty Dr., .50 Mi., |

Intersection C49A to

W. of Rodeo Grounds

-22'W

CRACK SEAL & FOG SEAL

SINGLE PENETRATION CHIP SEAL

-58,080 SF

-6,453 SY
621000 MOBILIZATION 1|/ 5,000.00 | LS 5,000.00T
618000 TRAFFIC CONTROL MANAGEMENT 1y 7 2,000.00LS 2,000.00T
411001 CRACK SEAL & FOG SEAL PER SF 58,080} 0.20 | sqft 11,616.00T
417003 SINGLE PENETRATION CHIP SEAL 6,453] , 6.50 | sqyd 41,944 50T

Exclusions: SWPPP, Surveying, Material, Testing, Engincering, Permits, Soil, Blending, Rock Excavation, Utilities, Bonds, Striping and anything

not listed above.

Federal ID: ENI: 27-1902307
CRS: 03-181502-00-2

Duns: 830132820

NM Work Force Solution: 002461320120530

NM Contractor's License: 370602 (GAO1, GA98, GB98, GF01, GF02, GF03, GF04, GF0S5,

GFO7, GF08, GF09,
NM State Residence

GS08)
Certificate: 1.1391423280

Subtotal $60,560.50
Sales Tax (8.125%) $4,920.54
Total $65,481.04

&

@ 5935 Agua Fria Street, Santa Fe, NM 87507

& 5054719981

‘ m
™ www.gmemulsior com T=®




{ EMULSION e YRR
O /
Name / Address Esti m ate Date Estimate #
Cibola County 2/14/2022 C-49AParson
Audrey Archunde
Project
Cibola County Various Roads 20...
Item Description Qty Rate Um Total
C-49A, Parsons Lane |
40 Mi.
-20''W
CRACK SEAL & FOG SEAL
SINGLE PENETRATION CHIP SEAL
-42,240 SF
-4,693 SY
621000 MOBILIZATION 1| v 5,000.00{LS 5,000.00T
618000 TRAFFIC CONTROL MANAGEMENT 1 4 1,500.00 { LS 1,500.00T
411001 CRACK SEAL & FOG SEAL PER SF 42,240 0.20 { sgft 8,448.00T
417003 SINGLE PENETRATION CHIP SEAL 4,693 6.50 | sqyd 30,504.50T

Exclusions: SWPPP, Surveying, Material, Testing, Engincering, Permits, Soil, Blending, Rock Excavation, Utilities, Bonds, Striping and anything

not listed above.

Federal ID: ENI: 27-1902307

Subtotal $45,452.50
CRS: 03-181502-00-2
Duns: 830132820
NM Work Force Solution: 002461320120530 Sales Tax (81 25"/3) $3,693.02
NM Contractor's License: 370602 (GAO1, GA98, GB98, GFO1, GF02, GF03, GF04, GF0S,
GFO07, GFO8, GF09, GS08)
NM State Residence Certificate: L1391423280 Total $49,145.52

2 /]

£ 5535 Agua Fria Street, Santa Fe, NM 87507 *=* 505.471-9981 ™% www.gmemulsior.com =%




EMULSION ue

et v/
Name / Address Esti m ate Date Estimate #
Cibola County 2/14/2022 C-538alalaz
Audrey Archunde
Project
Cibola County Various Roads 20...
Item Description Qty Rate um Total
C-53, Salazar Lp., .60 Mi., }
Intersection SR 53
loop back to SR 53
-200'W
CRACK SEAL & FOG SEAL
SINGLE PENETRATION CHIP SEAL
-63,360 SF
-7,040 SY
621000 MOBILIZATION 11~ 5000.00{LS 5,000.00T
618000 TRAFFIC CONTROL MANAGEMENT v 2,500.00{LS 2,500.00T
411001 CRACK SEAL & FOG SEAL PER SF 63,3601 v/ 0.20{sqft 12,672.00T
417003 SINGLE PENETRATION CHIP SEAL 7,040¢ 6.50 | sqyd 45,760.00T

Exclusions: SWPPP, Surveying, Material, Testing, Engineering, Permits, Soil, Blending, Rock

not listed above.

Excavation, Utilities, Bonds, Striping and anything

Federal ID: ENI: 27-1902307
CRS: 03-181502-00-2

Duns: 830132820

NM Work Force Solution: 002461320120530
NM Contractor’s License: 370602 (GA01, GA98, GB98, GF01, GF02, GF03, GF04, GF0S,
GF07, GF08, GF09, GS08)

NM State Residence Certificate: 11391423280

Subtotal $65,932.00
Sales Tax (8.125%) $5,356.98
Total $71,288.98

B /]
'ﬂ@ 5935 Agua Fria Street, Santa Fe, NM 87507 A 505-471-9981 T www.gmemulsion.com ="




EMULSION we

ye

Vv
Name / Address E sti m ate Date Estimate #
Cibola County 2/14/2022 C-17Mt.Tayl
Audrey Archunde
2 Project
Cibola County Various Roads 20...
ltem Description Qty Rate um Total

C-17, Mt. Taylor Addition,

1.2 Mi,, (Theresa St. .60 mi., /

Jamie St. .20 mi., Deanna Lee

.20 mi,, Elena .20 mi.) 2

N. Jet SR<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>